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HYPERION
NSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Group directors’ report for the year ended 30 September 2013

The direclors submit their report and audited financial statements for Hypenon insurance Group Limited (“the Company”)
togather with the consolidated financial staterments of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2013

Principal activities

The pnincipal activity of the Company dunng the year was that of a holding and investment company for a group of insurance
intarmedianes The Group's trading operations compnse wholesale and retail insurance broking, reinsurance broking and
underwrittng agencies

Dividends

The prehit of the Group for the year after taxation and atinbutable to shareholders amounted to £7.1m (2012 £18 4m). Equity
dmdends were paid dunng the year amounting to £2 0m (2012 £1 2m)

Significant changes in shareholding, and repurchase of shares

On 8 July 2013, General Allanhc Hawthom B V (“General Atlantic”) purchased shares representing in lotal 28 85% of the
share capital of the Cempany, in a transaction involving the sale of shares held by two of the Company's major
shareholders 31 Group plc {including cerain of its investmeni vehiles) (“3i") and BP Marsh & Company Limited ("BP
Marsh™) Prior to the transaction, 31 and BP Marsh held 22 42% and 13 61% respectively in the share capital of the
Company 31 sold 100% and BP Marsh sold B0% of their respective shareholdings m the Company in the transacton BP
Marsh sold 80% of its sharehalding in the Company to General Atlantic and granted an opltion to General Atlantic to
purchasa the ramairung 20% of i1s shareholding As of the dale of this repon, this oplion has not yet baen exercised

The transacticn also involved the Company buying back from 3i shares representing 5 5% of its tolal share capital
Subsequent to this the Company ssued new shares representing 1 88% of its total share capital (following the repurchase)
to certam current employees and/or shareholders The balance of the shares sold by 31 in the transaction was purchased by
General Atlanlic

Events afier the reporting period

On 17 October 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries HIG Finance Limited and Hypenon Finance S & r| entered into an
agresment (the “Credit Agreement”) with J P. Morgan Europe Limited, J P Morgan Chase Bank N A, J P Moargan Limited,
HSBC Secunties (USA) Inc, Lloyds Secuntes, Inc, and the Lenders listed in the Cradit Agreement, for a Serior Secured
Temn Loan of US$250 mullion (the “Term Loan™) and a Revolving Credit Facility of £25 milion ({ogsthar, the “Loans™) The
purpose of these Loans (s to refinance exishing indebtedness and to provide a more diversified source of funding for the
future expansion and growth of the Group Further ferms and conditions of the Term Lean are disclosed in the notes lo the
financial statemenis

On 24 October 2013, the Group, through its subsidiary DUAL Intemational Limited, acquired a controlling interest in Prnmary
Group Inc. (“PGI"), an estabhshed property and casualty programme manager which operatas underwnting offices in
Cahfornia, Flonda, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey and New York This acquisitton wili significantly expand the Group's
presence in the United States of Amenca
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

The Board
The Board I1s responsible for maintaining effective control over the Group’s significant strategic, financial, organisational,

lega! and regulatory matlers Jt meets at isast six imes a ysar Management supply the Board with appropnate and timely
information and the directors are free to seek any further information they consider necessary

Directors

The directars who served dunng the year are hsied below

J P de Blocq van Kufieler Chairman

D P Howden Cheief Execulive

€ R M Fady Finance Dwector

L | Munoz-Rojas Entrecanales

J D Bemnsten (appointed 8 July 2013)
D C Hedgson (appointed 25 July 2013)
E H Woolf

Lord Forsyth

J S Newman (resigned 8 July 2013}

D A Whileman (resigned 8 July 2013}

Directors’ Indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of s directors which were made dunng
tha year and rematn in farce at the date of this report.

Corporate governance

The Board ts committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance We recognise that good govemnance helps
the business to deliver our sirategy and safeguand shareholders’ long-term interests We believe that the UK Corporate

Govemance Code provides a useful guide and we apply these principles as appropriala lo a group of our size
The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision.

Matters requinng Board approval include Group sirategy and planaing, structure and captal, financial reporting and controls,
key business polictes (including the remuneration policy), Board membership and other appointments

The Board currentty compnses two executive diectors and six nan-executive directors {including the Chaiman) with an
appropnate balance of expenence and knowledge As a resuli, the Board's decision-making processes cannot be dominated

by an indwidual or small group

Mr Bemnstein and Mr Hodgson reprasent on the Company's Board the shareholding interests of the Group's largest
sharehoider General Atlantic Hawthom B V The Board believes that the presence ol Mr Bamstein and Mr Hodgson on the
Board 1s appropriate and in the interests of shareholders generally and does not detract from their independence on any
relevant lssue Mr de Blocq van Kuffeler (the Chawrman of the Board) and Mr. Woal! (the senior independent non-executive
direclor) are independent of any of the Company’s major shareholders Whie Mr Woolf has been a director of the Company
since 1999, the Board believes that his presence on the Board and as Charman of the Audit Committee conttinues to be
appropnate and in the mterests of shareholders generally, having regard to his particular expertise and relevant experience
in relation to his role.

The directors have access o independent professional advice al the Company's expense, where deemed necessary, to
discharge their responsibitties as direciors The directors also have access to the adwice and services of the Company

Seacretary

Accountability and audit

The Board has averall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal control and for reviewing their effectiveness

The implementation and maintenance of the nsk management and intemal control systems are the responsibility of the

exacutive directors and senior management The systems are designed to manage, rather than ebmnate, the nsk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but nat absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or

loss
Relations with shareholders

The Board ensures that a satisfactory dialogue with major investors and employee shareholders takes place Each of the
Company’s major investors I1s represented on the Board by a director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Conflicts of interest

The Company’s Articles of Association permit the Board to authonse potential conflicts of interest. Authonsation of any such
confiicts may only be given by diractors who have no interest in the matier baing considered The Board has procedures in
place to review actual and potental conflicts of interest

Messrs Howden, Mufioz-Rojas Entrecanalas, Bemstein and Hodgson represent the interests of the Company's three largesl
shareholders and their interests have been notified to the Company

Board Commitiees

The Board has delegated certain responsibiiies to Committees that are descnbed below, all of which have formally
constituted terms of reference

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors and 1s chaired by Emile Woolf The Commuttee meets at least
four tmes a year Meetings are atlended, by invilation, by the Company's external audilor, the Finance Director and
members of his stafi, compliance officers and Intermal Audit The Audit Committee, through its Chaiman, formally reports to

the Board on its activities

The Committee’s role 18 1o assist the Boards of the Company and its subsidianes in fulfilling therr responsibiliies with regard
to accounting policies, intermal control, financial reporting funclions, nsk management, comphance and relaled matiers

Membership

E H Wool! {Chawrman)
Lard Forsyth
JODBemstem  (allemate A .J Given)

External auditor

The Commitiee is rasponsible for overseeing the relationship with the external auditer Dunng the year, the Committee
reviewed the exiernal audilor's terms of engagement, assessed its independence and reviewed s audil findings

The formal policy on auditor independence was adopled by the Commitlee in December 2010. Among other things, this sets
out the circumstances under which the external group auditor can prowde non-audit services in a manner that does not
conflict with its iIndepandance

Internal Audit

The Audit Committee s requirad to assist the Board to fulfd s respansibiiies relating to the adequacy of the resaurcing and
plans of the Intemal Audit depariment To fulfil these duties, the Committee

reviewed and assessed the annual internal audit plan,

reviswed all reports on the Group from the internal auditors,

reviewed the co-ordination between mtemal and extarnal auditors,

raviewed and monitored management's responsiveness to the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor;
and

+ discussed with intemal Audit, withoul managemen! being present, its remit and any issues ansing from the intermnal
audits carned out
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continuad)

(i) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses four non-executive directors and is chaired by John de Blocq van Kuffeles The
Commdtee normally meels four imes a year. Meetings are attended by the Chief Executive and by the Group Human
Resources manager, Other individuals and external advisers may be invited to attend for all or part of any mesling as and
when appropriate The Remuneration Commuttee, through its Charrman, formally reports 1o the Board on its activities

The Committes’s averall responsibility is to balance the various interests of shareholders, the Group and its employees, with
the aim of ensuring that the Group, through its remuneration policy, is able to atiract, retasn and motivate management and
senior stafi of appropriate expenence and experise Further details on the activities of the Remuneration Committee are

included in the directors’ remuneration report on page 9.
Membership

J P de Blocq van Kullefer (Chairman)
E H Wooll

Lord Forsyth

J D Bernstein

(iii) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four non-executive directors and the Chiel Executive Oficer, and 1s chawrad by John
de Blocq van Kufleler The Commiitee normally meets twice a year The Committea’s overall responsibility ts to review
regulady and to evaluate the balance of skills, expenance, independence and knowledge on the Board and, in light of this
avaluation, prepare a descnption of the role and capabilihes required for a particular appointment, making recommendations
to the Board with regard to any changes

Membership

J P de Blocq van Kuffeler {Chairman}
£ H Woolt

DP Howden

J D Bemstemn

Lard Forsyth

Board and committea attendance 2013

Board Audit Remuneration Nommatien
Committes Commiltee Committeo
E R M Fady 6 - - -
© P Howden 6 - - 1
J P de Blocg van Kuffeler 6 - 4 1
L | Mufiez-Rojas Entrecanales 6 - - -
J D Bemnstein 2t 2't 11 1t
D C Hodgson 2t - - -
J S Newman 4% 21 3t -
O A Whileman 3t 2t 3t -
E HWooll 6 4 4
Lord Forsyth 6 2t 3t 17
Total meetings 6 4 4 1

* Including attendance by Altamate
t Appointed dunng the year
t Resigned dunng the year




Directors’ interests

E A M Fady '

D P Howden 2

J P de Blocq van Kuffeler '

L | Mufioz-Rogas Entrecanales
J S Newman

D A Whileman

€ H Wooli *

Lord Forsyth '

J D Bemstein

D C Hodgson

E A M Fady *

D P Howden

J P de Blocq van Kulfeler

L I Mufioz-Rojas Entrecanales
J S Newman

D A Whileman

E H Woolf

Lord Forsyth

J D Bernstemn

D C Hodgson

Shargholting includas shares hald in SIPP
Shares he!d through Invesion companlas i which the director has an mterost

At 30 September
2013

No of

A Ordinary
Shares

6,216,900

8,643,900

HYPERION
WNSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
At 30 Septembar At 30 September At 30 September
2013 2002 2002
No of No of No of
8 Ordinary A Ordinary B Ordinary
Shares Shares Shares
668,600 - 668,600
- 6,264,600 -
424,400 - 424,400
- 8,643,900 -
20,000 - .
20,000 - 20,000
At 30 September 2013 At 30 September 2012
No of No of
C QOrdinary C Ordinary
Sharas Shares
70,000 70,000
105,600

)

2 Sharsholdng includes shates hekd in family rust and i SIPP
3

4

Sharas haid n wite s nama

105,600

Note All the sharas listed above were acquired by each Direclor (or their connected persons) at the current pnce tor the
class of shares acquired at the date of acquisition

Disclosure of Information to the auditor

Each of the persans who 1s a director at the date of approval of thus rapor confims that

+ 5o far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevart audit information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and
s the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in ardar to make themselves aware ol
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of that informauon

This conlimmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Campames Act

2006

Auditor

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropnate armangements have been
pul n place for them lo be reappointed as auditor at the Annual Generat Mesting.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

’1}&(@\/

\L’L December 2013
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Group strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2013
Financial review

The financial statements include a consolidaled mcome statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of financial position and consoldated cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2013,
tagether wath comparative figures for the year ended 30 September 2012

The Group has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as the basis of preparation of its consotidated
accounts The statutory accounts of indvidual compames within the Group continue to be prepared in accordance wth local
accounting standards and in this regard the balance sheet for the parent company, Hypenen Insurance Group Limited, has
been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Acceptad Accounting Principles ("UK GAAP™)

The segmental analysis of the Group idenlifies the approach adopled by the Group in assessing its financial performance
and the following comments are probably more easily interpreted by relerence to note 3

Continuing Operations

The Board 1s pleased to announce that the Group reporied a 50 2% growth in fees and commtssions to £163 6m (2012
£108 9m) Group EBITDA (Eamings before Interest, Tax, Depreciatron and Amortisation) excluding acquisiion costs and
non-recurnng items was up 74 2% to £35 9m (2012 £20 6m) Group aperating profit, before acquisition cests and non-
recurring Hems was £29 9m (2012 £17 Sm) Acquisition cosis and non-recumnng stlems are separately idenbfied to prowide
greater understanding of the Group’s underlying performance Further analysts of these tems can be found in the notes to
the cansolidated financial statements Group profit before tax was £15 9m compared to £7 Om in 2012

The Broking Group reported fee and commssion income of £124 Om (2012 £74 8m), representing averall growth of £48 3m
{67%) compared to prior year EBITDA was £24 4m (2012 £12 1m)

DUAL Intemational reporied an 18% increase n revenue from £34 2m to £39 6m and its EBITDA increased from £9 8m lo
£13 5m (35 9%) Gross wniten premiums increased by 12% to £254 4m

Acquisltions and growth

On 5 February 2013, the Company acquired through its newly-formed subsidiary Hypenon Manne Holdings Limiled a 55%
shareholding 1n FP Group Limited, ihe holding company of a Hong Kong based specialist manne insurance broking group

On 7 August 2013, the Group acquired a 60% shareholding in Werkplacs Pension Solutions (UK) Limited, a Cardiff based
insurance brokerage and consuliancy firm, The name has since been changed to Howden Employee Benefits UK Limned

On 24 September 2013, the Group acquwred 51% of the shargholding in Northedge Forsiknngsmeglng AS (now Howden
Forsiknngsmeghing AS), an insurance brokerage based in Norway

The Group also acquired interesis in insurance brokerage firms in Chile and the Netherlands dunng the year The Group
does not coniral these invesiments and they ara therefore accounted for as Investments in Associates

The resulls of the Windsor Group, which was acquired dunng the pnor year, are now fully integrated into the Group
Internal control and risk management

The Board i1s responsible for maintaining a sound system of inlemal control and nsk management, and for reviewing its
effectiveness to safeguard sharsholders' investmants and Group assets There is no absolule means of preventing matenal
loss and/or misstatement and the Group’s intemal controls reflect a balanced judgement, taking into account the direct costs
of controls as well as the indirect costs of being over-bureaucratic, which provide reasonable assurance against matanal
loss and/or misstaternent

The Group's mtemal controls are tested and key business nsks are evaluated on a continuing basis, using Intemal Audit,
Compliance, and other relevant expertise The Group maintains insurance cover against centan nsks, including fidslty
msurance
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal business risks and uncertainties

The Group Is exposed 1o the cyclical factors that affect the insurance market, and premiums and commissions Whilst s
underwnting agency operations are nol directly respanstble for claims, claims cosis do affect the level of prelit commission

that the Group receives

Further, the Group's intemational focus (which 1s one of its most important strengths) exposes its revenues to currency
flucluations, mainly Stering/Dollar and Stering/Euro The Group has floating-rale borrowings in US Dollars, Australan
Doliars and Euros and 1s therelfore also expased to interest rale movements in those currencies The Group has put in place

appropnate hedging strategies to manage this nsk

The Group 1s ambitous and seeks to grow by means of acquisiions and organic growth Such activites are inherently
uncertain, particularly start-up oparations where the tming and quantum of revenue build-up cannol be forecast with
precision, and there is no developed book of renewals The Group seeks to minimise such uncertainties with careful

business planning, due diigence and warranties

In all its principal operations, the Group 1s also exposed to regulatory nsk, and alsa an element of pelitical nsk in cartatn
geographic regions, such as the Middle East and Labn Amenca

The Group uses a number of intemnal performance indicators to monitor and assess its business In pariicular, renewal and
attntion rates are carefully reviewed

Flnancial risk management

The Group's financial nsk management abjective 1s broadly to seek to make neither profit nor loss from exposure to currency
or interest rate nsks Us polcy 18 to finance working capital through retained earnings and bank borrowings at prevailing
market inlerest rates Acquisitions are funded through a combination of retained samings, additional equity and appropnate
long-term finance

{I) Cash flow risk

The Group's working capital compnsas pnncipally debtors, creditors and cash as descnbed in note 1(1) It 1s the Group's
policy not to fund any insurance transaction thersby mimmising any credit exposure attaching to these insurance batances
Insurance balances are denominated in vanous currencies, predominantly Sterling, US Dollars and Euros To minmmise the
foraign exchange exposure the Group endeavours to maltch foreign currency assets with habilities of similar maturities and
vice versa Where this 1s nol possible, Group companias occasionally purchase appropriale financial instruments to cover

malerial exposures

(if) Liquidity risk

In ordar to mamtain iquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are avaiable for ongoing cperations and future developments, the
Group usas a mixture of long-term and shoert-term debl hnance

Further delails regarding the kquidity nsk can be found in note 28 in the financial statements.

(i) Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assels are cash, trade and other receivables and investments The amounts presented in the
stalernent of financial postion are nel of allowances for doubtful recervables An allowance for impairment is made whera
there 1s an dentified loss event which, based on pravious expenence, is evidence of a raduction n the recoverabiity of cash

flows With regards to nsurance balances, the Group's nsk rs imited as the Group acls as the agent on these transactions
Further information on insurance balances recevable and the nsk relating to these balances can be found in the statement

of accounting policies n the linancial statemeants

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

The credit nsk on liquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s mited as the counterparties are the Group's bankers
with high credit-ratings assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, intemal controls and nsk management structure, including details of its financial instrumenis
and hedqing activities, and its exposures to credit and hquidity nsks, are sel out above

The Group has adequate financial resources together with its business being geographically diverse As a consequence, the
directors believe that the Group 1s well placed lo manage its business risks successfully

Alter making enquirles, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational extstence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continus to adopt the going
concemn basis in prepanng the annual report and accounts

Employment policies

The Board recogrises that the continuing success of the Group depends on iis employees and its abibly to continue to adopt
policies creatad to attract, metvate and retain employees of the highest calibre

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and bases dacisions on individual ability regardless of race, religion, gender,
age, sexual onentation, or disability The Group’s equal opporiunities policy 1s designed to ensure that disabled persons are

given the same consderation as others when they apply for jobs, and enjoy the same training, carcer development and
prospects as other employees

The Group seeks to achieve a common awarenass among Iis employees of the finaneial and econommic factors atlecting the
business by consultation and elfective employee communication through a vanety of media

Environmental policy
The Group is commutted to reducing its impact on the environment

The Group remains committed to

*  mimmising energy, water and paper use,

+ ophmising waste recychng by providing faciities and encouraging people to recycle;

« reducing travel, encouraging people to carmmunicate without traveling when practicable, and
s ensunng appropnate regulatory compliance

Suppliers

The Group does not currently subscnbe lo any code or standard on paymeni practice It 1s the Group’s policy, hawevar, to
settie tarms of payment with those supphers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that those suppliers are
made aware of the lerms of payment, and to abide by the larms of payment.

The amount due o the Group's trade creditors at 30 September 2013 represented 30 days' average daily purchases of
goods and services receivad from those creditors

Charitable donations

During the year to 30 September 2013 the Group made cash donations of £13,306 (2012 £23,885) for the benefit of
chantable causes

No political donations were made by the Group dunng the year (2012 £24,000)
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Directors’ remuneration report

Tha Group's remuneration policy IS to ensure that the remuneration of employees and execulive direclors enables it to
recruil, retain and mobvate individuals of sufficient experlise and commitment 1o further the success of the Group

The Remuneration Committee comprises sclely independent non-executive directors and has the following dubes.

{# To determne and agree with the Board the framework or broad policy for the ramuneration of the Company's
Chairman, CEQ, and the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the members ol the senor execulive
management team,

(m  Indetermining such policy, 1o take into account all factors which it deems necessary The objeclive of such policy shall
be to ensure that members of the executive management of the Company are provided with appropnate incentives to
encourage enhanced performance and are, i a far and sesponsible manner, rewarded for therr indwidual
contnbutions to the success of the Group,

(m) Wihin the terms of the agreed polcy and in consultation with the Chairman and/or CEQO as appropnate

{a) determine the tolal :ndividual remuneration package of each executive director and other senior executives
whose contractual remuneration exceeds £250,000 per annum sncluding bonuses, incentve payments and
share options or other share awards,

(b} review and approve the appointments of all senior executives whose proposed contractual remuneralion
exceeds £250,000 par annum, and

() review and approve Bonus Plans and any remuneration policies adopted by subsidiary companies

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

N J@“‘V

““‘ December 2013
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Tha directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the hinancial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adoptad by the European Union and the parent company financial statsments in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Acceplad Accountng Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the direclors
must not approve a Company's financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the stale
of affairs of the Company and of the prohit or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are reguired to

= select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgments and accounling estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been lollowed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

In prepanng the Group financial statements, Intemabtionat Accounting Standard 1 requires that direclors

+ propery select and apply accounling policies,

» peresent information, including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

e provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the specilic requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transaclions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and
financial performance; and

+ make an assessment of the Company's abihily to conlinue as a going concern

The direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient te show and explan the
Company's transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that lhe iinancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other wregulanties

The diractors are responsible for the maintenance and miegnty of the Group website, www hypenongrp com Legsslation in
the United Kingdom govarning the preparation and dissemination of financal stalements may ditfer irom legislation i cther

jursdictions

The directors canfirm that, to the best of each person’s knowledge

+ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true
and fair view of the agsets, liabiliies, financial position and profit of the Group, and

+ the directors’ reportincludes a fair review of the develcpment and performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a descnption of the principa! nsks and uncertainties that it faces

10




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

We have audited the Group financial stalements of Hypenon Insurance Group Limiled for the year ended 30 September
2013 which compnse the Consolkdated Income Statement, the Conschdaled Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equily, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement, and the relaled notes 1 to 40 ‘The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable law and Inlemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon

This report is made sclely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Parl 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audrit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matlers we are
required to stale to them i an auditor's report and for no cther purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibiiy 1o anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Directors' Responsibilifies Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being satisfied thal they give a true and farr view OQur responsibility s {o audit and
express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounis and disclosures n the financral statements sufficcent to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statemenis are free from matenal misstatemeant, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In additton, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the annual report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to denbfy any
information that is apparently materlally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implicatons for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimon the Group financial statements

s gwve a true and far view of the state of the Group's affairs as al 30 Seplember 2013 and of its profit for the year then

ended,
= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopied by the European Union, and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimicn the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
Group financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Group financia! statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matlers where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
In Cur opinion

+  cerain disclosures of direclors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not recewed all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Hypenon Insurance Group Limited for the year
ended 30 September 2013

N T

Dawid Rush (Semor Statutory Auditor) I8 December 2013
for and on behalf of Delaitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdem
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Hyperon Insurance Group Lintied

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Continuing operations
Fgos and commissions
Other operating income
Other oparating costs
Deprecilion and amortisation
Operating profh
Analysed as
Oparting profli balore nen-recurring Hema
Acquisition costs
Non recurring itams
Oparsting profh

Finance income
Financa cests

Profit balore changes In tha fair vatue of defarmed consideration
Changos in e lak vatue i deferred consdaration
Profit belore tax lor tha year
income tax axpense
Profit after tax from continuing eperatlons
Discontinued oparationa
Profit ehtar tax from discontnued operauons
(LossVprohit on salky of investmants
Impaiment ol non-fmancial assets
Totsl discantinued operutions
Profit after tax

Profit attributable to
Group sharaholders
Mnory intorests

Notos

Tumovar and aperating profit for the year arose rom contnuing cperations, discontinued opaerations have been separataly disclosed
Thé notes on pagas 53 to 98 farm an Integral pan of these consofidated financial statemeants

Yeor end Yeat gnd
30 September 30 Seplamber
2013 2012
£000 £:000
163,601 108,319
3,014 1,850
(134,722} {94,999)
(5,985} {3062}
25,508 12,508
29,395 17.531
918} (1,743
{3,069) {3 280)
25,506 12508
177 115
T.110) (4,168)
18,975 8,455
(3.098) {1.503}
15,877 6952
5,779 (3.857)
10,104 3065
57 1,580
(287) 17,123
- {1196)
{230} 17 507
8,874 26572
7,070 18 427
2,804 2145
9,674 20572




Hyperion Insurance Croup Limitog

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAH ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Eamings per share attributable to the equity holders of tha Campany during tha year:

From continuing operationa

Eamings per share - basic

Balom fair value adjustments an defsrud consideration - basic

Bators lar value adjustments cn delemrad consideration and non recumng cosls

Befom fak valua adgjustments on defsrrad consideration and non racumng cosls and acquistion costs

From discontinued operations

Eamings per shar - basic

Batore fair value adjusiments on deferred considaration - baske

Bajare lair valus adjustmants on delerred consideralion and proit on disposal basic

From continuing and discontinued operatlons

Eamings per share - baskc

Balore lair value adjustiments on deferred consideralion - basic

Bolore lair value adjustments on delerred considaration and proft on deposal - basic

Notas

Yoar anded 30  Year ended 30

September September

2012 2012
£ 000 £000
14 &p 21p
205p 55p
251p 110p
26 9p 150p
(e5p) 39.5p
{05p) 39.5p

01p aép
138p 416p
200p 45 Op
268p 18.5p




Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMDER 2013

Profit tor the year

QOmer comprahensive income

fevalualion cf cash flow hadging inslrumanis
Ravalyaton of ntanghble assots

Transtation of foreign operations

Other comprsheansive Incoms for the year

Total comprehansive | for the period
Profils atinbutablo 1o

Group shareholders

Mnority ntarasts

Comprehensivé incoma for the year ercsa from contnuag epermtions anly

Notas

3388

Yasr anded JO  Year ensted 30
Septamber September
201 2012
t£'ooo £000
9,874 20 572
522 244
39
{1,107} {290)
{548) 154
9,328 20 726
6622 t8,581
2707 2145
9328 20 728




HMyponon Insursnce Group Lirnlad

Non-current asssts

Goodwil

Intangie assets

Proparty plant and equoment
nvestmeants heid at cost
Invastmeants n associales
Trada and other racowablas
Dalerrad tax assets

Curmmont assets

Trada and athar recenoblas

Cash and cash squivalents
Insurance cash and cash equivalants
Denvalve fnancal nstrumenis

Curreni Uabliitles

tnsuranco payables

Trade and other payabilos
Bank ovendralt

Corporation lax payable
Borowmngs

Cerivave Bnancial nstruments
Provisons

Nat currant assets

Nen-<current liabllities
Borrowngs

Trade and othar payables
Dafered tax Eatxltes

[n] ve financal i L
Liqusdity put spban

Total nat asscts

Equity

Issued sharo capital
Share premaum

Other rasarves
Liquehly put pplan
Reta:ned sarmngs
Shareholders’ aquity

Minority Interssts

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

26

2013 012
£000 £°000 £000 £000
122,932 116,08
26,898 25,450
10,351 9252
1622 1073
353 -
138 82
2,402 2188
164,358 154 160
61,924 19 948
18,301 23,175
154,653 113,488
965 816
236,344 177 428
(152,768} (105 888}
(27.093) {29 705}
(566) (278}
{5201) (4 124)
(22.901) (3378)
{637} (3,576}
{1,518 (677}
210,724} (14B,626)
25,620 28 802
(83,674) (77,439)
(2,415} {3,150}
(6,347) (6 253)
{10,781) (10057}
{48,489) {48 118}
{165,706) {145 022
24,812 37.940
494 508
€0 005 50,148
(18,777 (5 063)
{48,118} (48 118)
22 538 27489
18,182 34556
6,620 2984
24,812 37 940

i mants werg approvod by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 18 December 2013 They ware sgned on its bohalf by

D P Howdan
Ciuo! axstutve

Comgpany Number 2637368

E R ¥ Fady
Fmnance Drecior
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M3

Ag ot 1 Octaber 2012

Profit for the year

Translation of toraign operations
Movement in cash tow hadging
Instrumonts

Revatuation of assets

Other Camprahsnsive income ior the year
Total Comprehensive incoma lor the year
Dwvidands paid

Issua of shares

Net movemend in shares hekl by Employse
Benefil Trust

Repurchase of share capiial (Not 25)

Arising on acquisition and disposals
Az 8¢ 30 September 2013

2012

As at 1 October 2011

Profit for tha year

Translation of fareign cperations
Mcovameant in cash fiow hadging
instrumants

Othar Comprehensive ncome lor the year
Total Comprehensive income lof the yoar
Dwidends pakd

Issua of shargy

Net movemant in shares hokd by Employoe
Beneld Trust

Arising on scquisition and disposats

As at 30 Saptember 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Share  Liquidity Totsl
Caltad up premium  pul opticn Other Aetained shareholders Minority
share capital account ransarve rasarves earnings Equity Interests Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £
508 60,146 {48,118) {5.069) 27,489 34956 2,984 37,940
- . - - 7,070 7070 2.804 9.874
- - - (1,010) - (1,010) 1n {1,107
- . 522 - 522 - 522
- - . 29 - - 9
- - - {449) - (449] {87) (548)
- - . {449) 7.070 6,521 2,707 9,328
- - - - (1.991) (1991} {1,184) {3,185)
10 1,841 - - - 1,451 - 1,451
{3) (1,582) - 832 - (755) (755}
(19) - . 19 9.880) {9,980) . {9 580}
- - - {12,110} - {12.110] 2123 [9.987}
494 60 005 (48,118} (16.777) 22,508 18,192 6,620 24812
Share Liquidity Total
Calledup  premium  pul option Other Retained  shareholders Minerity
share capltal account reserve resarvens eamings Equlty tnterests Total equity
€000 £'0g0 £'ouo £'000 £'000 £'000 £'600 £'000
422 35,140 B 2.418) 10.262 43,406 3770 FYRY)
- - - 18,427 18 437 2,145 20,572
- - . {278) . {276 196 (80)
. - 444 - 244 . 444
. 167 5 167 196 364
. . 167 18,427 18,554 2,341 20935
: - - {1.200) (1.200 (7001 {1,900)
B3 24,735 . - - 24,878 - 24,878
3 2u . - 214 - 214
. . {48,118) {2 818} . (50 937) (2 428) (53 364)
508 GO.146 43,118} (5.069) 27485 34956 7,084 37540




Hyperion Insurence Group Limitad

Cash flow from aperating activities
Cash receipis from customers

Cash mceipts trom Higation saltlemeant
Cash pad to suppliers and employoos
Cash genarated from operations

Corporalion az payments
Interest paid
Intarast recetved

Neot cash generated from cpersting activities

Cash flaws from investing activities
Purchase of propanty, plant and aquipment
tnvastmant in subsidiarias

Investment in assaclates

Cash on acquisition of subsidiary
Proceeds from disposat ol opemations
Acquisiton of non-controing intarests
Acquisition of other aquity Investments
Nat cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing acthvities
Saftiement of deferred considaration obligations
Acquisition costs

Drawdown of shaieholdar loans

Issua of other borgwings

Purchase of own shares - employae share scheme

Repurchase ol share capital

Proceeds trom isue of sham caphal

Finance leasa caphal repayments

Dividands payable to non-controling sharghoidors
Dividends pad

Nat cash (used inytrom financing activities

CONSQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 20313

Note

39

Nat (decrsans)increass In own cash and cash equivalents

Cash snd cash egulval st 1 October 2012

Cash and cash aquivalents st 30 September 2013

Insuranee cash al begnning of pariod
Net insurance cash inflow lor the pariod

1B

naurance cash at snd of period from centinuing cperations 16

Cash fiows for e year arps@ om continued and disconinued operalions

2013 2012
£'000 £000
155,204 108 869
1,010 .
(139,40_2} (B8 572)
16,809 20,297
{5,057} {5,335)
{6,179) {6,012}
100 150
5,679 9100
(3,459) {2,761)
(2,773) {52,284)
(353) -
672 5802
” 20810
(179) -
M ril)] I
{6,224) {28 433)
(5,885) {4, 450)
{1,150 {1,743)
503 4918
18,233 053
(2.408) .
{10,073) -
-1 -
{247) “12)
(1.203) (563)
(1,891) {1.200)
(4 114) 30 803
{4,661) 1,270
22 857 11827
18,235 22,897
113,488 57,843
41,165 §5.845
154,653 113488

Reter to Nota 39 for delall of the cash hows of the discontnued operations

ir



Hyperion Insurance Group Limited |

Noteo to the financlal statemanta
For Lthe year anded 1D September 2013

1 Accounting policies
Tha principal accountng podcies agdopted In the preparation ©f thase consobdatad nancial statements are sat out below

{8} Accounting convention
Statament of compliance with IFRS

The Group has prepared its consobgiatad linancal statemeants n accondance with Intemaiional Fnancial Repocng Standards (IFRSs) as adopled by the Evropean Linkon
iFASs comprise standards ana intarpratations approved by the intemanonat Accountng Standards Board (JAS8) and the Intamational Financial Reportnig Interpratations
Committea (IFRIC) as adopted in the European Union that are affactive Jor years ending on 30 Septembaer 2013, or which have been adopted early

Overall considamtion
The consckdatad financial statements have been prepared ¢n tha historical cost basis, except for the revaheation of financla! mstruments and derivative linanclal instrumants
Historical cost [s genaratly basad on the fak value of the considaralion gven in gxchange for the assety

Tha significant accounting policlas that have been applied in the preparation of these consolidated financlal statemsents are summartsed balow The accountng poicies have
teen used throughout all the periods prasentad in e financial siataments

Going Concam

Furtner information regardng the Group's business actvilies logether with tha lactors likely to allect i3 {uture davelopment, performance end pesition ere 3¢t out In the
Directors’ Repont. The financtal position of he Group, its cash flows, lquidsy postion end borrowng tacities are descnbad in the nolas to the accounls In addition note 28
{0 the tnancial statements includes the Group s Imancial fisk managemant objectives details of s financlal instruments and hedgng acthities, and s exposuras to credit
risk and liquidity risk

Having considered the aloregong, and altes making enguirios, the directors have o reasonable axpactation that the Company and tha Group have adequats resources jo
contnue in oparational ext 0 jor the forésesable uturg Accondngly, thay continue 10 adopl he going concam basis in preparing e consoficated financial statemants

Presantation of financial statements in accoreance with IAS 1 (Revised 2007)

The ¢consolidated financial statements are prepared n accordance with IAS + Prasentation of Finencial Statements' {Ravised 2007) The Group hes elected 1o presant the
‘Statoment of Comproghansive Incoma’ in Iwo statements the ‘Income Statement’ and the 'Statemen? of Comprahensve income’

The consolidated cash llow stalel t has been prepared showing sap h porate funds, being the Group 3 own cash batances and insuranca lunds, being lunds held
on bohalf of clents and insurars in non-statutory rust accounis The Gmup has changed is presantation lormas of the Statsment of Cash Flows from tha indrect 1o the dkect
method All comparative amouts have bean restatad

Adoption of new intomational Financial Reporting Standordo {'Standarda’)

Al the dato of the authorisaton of the consabdatad financkal statamants, he faliowing Standards and [ntarpratations wera in isus but not yat mandatory and have not bean
eppbed in the consolidated nancial statements

IFAS 9 'Frnancial natnanents’, mandatory effectve date has yat 1o ba confamed,

IFAS 10 "Conscdated financlal staternents’, effectve for annual periods beginning on or aftar * January 2013

IFAS 11 ‘Joint armngements’, ellective for annual parods bagnining on or after 1 January 2013,

IFRS 12 Disclosures of Intsrests n cther entlies”, sloctive for annual pericds begnaig on of aher 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 'Fak vatua measurement , etlective lor annual periods baginning on cor attar 1 January 2613,

I1AS 19 'Employes Benefits, effactive for nnual periods beginning on or aftar 1 January 2013,

|AS 27 ‘Separate financial statements’ {2011), alfective for annyal periods begeining on or after 1 January 2013, and

1AS 28 ‘invastmenis in asscciatas and joint ventures’ (2011) eflective lor annual pariods begnning on or aler 1 January 2013

At thae data of tha authorisation cf the consalidated financial statements, the following amendments (o standands and misrpretations were i issue but not yel mandatory and
have not been applied in the consciidater financial stalements

IAS 32 'Fnancial Instrurnants Prasantation’, aftactive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
The directars do not anticpals that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations and amendmenits 1o intarpratations and standards will have 8 materdal impac! on the
Group's consclidated fmancial statements in future perods

{b) Basis of consalidation

Tno Group's financial statements consolidate tha fnancial statements of he Company and is subsioiary undertakings for e year anded 30 Septambar usmg the acquasition
malhcd The resulls of acquired businessas are consolidalad from the data on which the Group oblans alective control of the subrsidiary

Subsidiaries ara entittes whera the Company has the powar to control the financial and aperatng poices, genarally accomparied by a share of more than haf of the voting
rights Unrealsed gains and losses on transachons with subsidiares or assoclates are alminated Transactions with associata s are elninated to e extent of the Group's
interast in those antties in praparing the consolidated financial stalaments




Hyperion Insurance Group Limitad
1 Accounting policies (continuad)

{c) Business combinations

The acqulisitions of subsidiaries are accountad for using the acqulsition method The cast of acquisition & measurad as the fair vatue af assets given, Hablitles incurred or
assumed and aquity instruments issead by the Group at the date of exchange Any costs directty attributable io the busnaess combamnation are booked ic the income
statamem as incurrad Idantfiable assats acquied and Eabihtes and contingeni kabifitias d, masting tha condliicns tor recognition undar IFRS 3 'Business
Combinatons', are recognised at thei fair valua at the acquisition date kraspeciive of the axtent of eny mnorty intarsst. The axcass of the cost of acquisition over the lale
valkua of he Group s share of the identifiable nat assats acquired (s recorded as goodwill Subsequeni changss in such fair values are adjustod againsi ha cost of acquistion
whare thay quality as measurament period adjustments Tha maasuramant patiod is the pariod from the date of acquisition o tha date the Group oblains complate
inforrnation about facts and cicumstancas thal axisted as of the acquisition date and fs subject to a maximurn of one year All othar subsequent changas in tha lair value of
contingent considaration classtfiad as an assat or fabitty ars accounted lor in accordance with relevant IFRSs

(d) lnvestments in associaies

Aasocialas are thosa entibas aver which the Group is able o exert signilicant influence but which are neliher subsidiaries nos interests in a joint veniure Invesiments in
B3socizies are killlaly recognised at cost end subsequently accounted for using tha equity mathod

{a) Operating profit
Operating profitis statnd balore finance incomae, finance ¢osts gnd changes in the talr valus of defermed consideraiion
{N Foroign curroncies

Hams included In the financla! stalements of each cf the Group's are d in the ¢ y of the primary econormic environment n winch it operates (its
lunctional currency) Tha consolidated fnznclal statemaents are presanted in pounds stering which is tha prasantation currency of the Group

The results of tha toreign subsidiasies have been vanstated using the averagae of monthly exchanga rales Assets and fabitias of oversess subsidiarias denominated in
foraign curencies are transtated at exchange rates provaing at %w batance sheet date, profils and losses are transiated into pounds steriing at average exchanpe rates lor
tha ralavant accounting perigds Exchange diferences arising, f any, ane racognised tn other comprehansive inzomae and transierred 1o the ranstation reserve On tha sale
of 8 subsidiary such transiation diferences any rscognisad as income or expenses in the period in which the operation is disposad of

{g) Revenus recognition
Revanue consists principally of brokerage, commissions and feas associated weh the placement of insurance and reinsurance contracts nat of commissions payable o
other duactly involved parties Re trern brokerage, commissions and lees are recognisad on the incaption data of the risk  Any adjusimants to commissions arising

from premiurn additions or reductions are recognised as and when thay are notfied by third parties

Whers contractual obligations exist for the parfortnance of post placernsnt activities &nd the cost of thass aclvities is not expacied o ba coversd by luturs cevenus, a
relavani proportion of ravenue racaved on placement is delerred and recognisad over the peariod duning which tha activites are parformed

Profit commission is racognised when tha amount can be astimatad, with a reasonable dagres of certainty, and Is eguivalent o the mimmum vahie sxpacted 1o be recelvad
narest ncome 18 recognised when i 1s probable that the aconemic banefits will ficw 1o the Group and the amoum of reverwes can be measured reliably

{n} O inued lans and non assets hald for 2ot

P

Hon-Curtent asaals {and dispesal grewps) classitied as held lor sale and discontinued oparations, are measured at the lower ol camrying amount and fair value less costs to
sall

Non-curreni assets angd dgisposal groups arm classified as hald lor sale i halr camying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rathar than thigugh contnuing
usa This condibon is regarded as met onty when the sale is highly probably and the assel (or dispesal groupl is avalable for mmadate sale in its present condition
Managemant must ba committad 10 tha sale which shou'd ba axpectad to qualdy for racognition pS a complotad 53t withm one yosr from e date of clasalfication

A discontnued oparaton i3 a component of an entty that eher has been disposed ol, or that is classihied as hald lor sale, end (8) represants a separata major ina of
business or gaographical area of cperations, and {b) is a part ol a single coordinated plan to dispesa of 8 separate ma,of Iina of business or gecgraphical araa of opemations
of [c} ts B subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view o rasate

Any gain or loss from disposal of a busnass together with the resulls ¢f these oparations until the data of disposal, s reported separataly as dis d aparatons The
fisancial mformation of discontinued operations ts excluded from the respactive captions in the consolidated financlal statements and related notes tor all years presented

{1} Goodwill

Goodwill reprasants ihe diference betwesn the cost of acquisilions and the Group's interest in the falr value of the idenuilable assats and Eabilit:es of the business
combinations a1 tha dates of the acquisitions Goodwdl is initia%y recognised at cost and Is subsequently reviewad lor impairment annually Any impaimani is recogrised
mmaediately in the incoma stafemant.

Goodwil arsing on acquisions betore the data of transition 10 IFASS has beéen relaingd et the previous UK GAAP value sublec! to beng tasiad for impakmant al ha! date
Goodwll wittten ofl to resarvas under UK, GAAP prior 1o 1998 has not been renstated end is not included n determining any subsequent profd or loss on dsposel. All
nagative goodwd was elminatad on transiion to IFRS

The Group has dalgnmined tat for the purposes of impabment testing, goodwill s allocated to each of the Group s subsidary entties or, i further analysis is required, the
Group's cash-generatng units Cash-generating units 1o which goodwil has been allocated are testad {of impaiment annualy Recoverable amounts for cash-gsnarating
units are mainly based on vaiue in use, which is cakulated trom cash flow projections trom tha Group s latest intamal foracasts The kay factors in the valus in use
calculations ara discount rales and estrmates of future cash flows (f the recoverabie amount of the unt is less than the carrying amaunt of the goodwad tha mpakmmant loss
is aflocated lo reduce the carying amount of any goodwil atiocated to the unit An mpalment loss recognised (or goadwil s not r@versed in & subsecuent pariod

Acquistions of non-controfing Interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in thelr capacity as equity hokdars and thetefore no goodwil is recognised as &
rasut of such transactons
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1 Accounting policles [continued)

() intangibla sssels

Computer software

Acqubed computer sottwara Bcences are capltaksed on the basis of the costs incurred 16 requirs and bring to yse the spacific soltware These costs are amordised over thalr
esimated useful ves of up to 10 years Costs assaclated with maintaining computer software programmas ara recognised as an expansa as aicurrad Costs that aro directly

associated with the production of identfiable and unique software products controbied by the Group and thal will generaig i benelits ding costs bayond one
yaar, 870 recognisad as ntangble assets Orect costs include employee costs diractly anrbutabile to the devaiopment of software

Customer relationships acquired in bualness combinationa

Customer retationships such &s access 1o cistribution networks and cuslomer sts hal ariss because tha acquirsa company has a practice of estabithing insurance
COntracts with s customers are measured a1 fair value af the date cf business combmation Tha fair valua of customar rstationships i datermmned using a discounted cash
fow analysis Best esumate assumptions lor renewa’ rales and sxpensas ara usad in cakculating the lalr value Customar retationships are amorilsed over the perod over
which banelits are expectad to ba derived irom these refationships Cuslomer relalonships ara reviawad annually for mpairmaent

Othar intangibls nasets

Drther intang:ble aysels comprise brands and cther acquired identflable non monatary assets without physical lorm, thase include non-compala contracts and brend names
thal havg been recognised on e acgquistion of subsiciarias Other intangble assets ara carriod at cosl ess accumulated amortisaticn Amortisation on other intangible
assets is caicutated using the siroight bne method 1o aocata the cost over thelr estmated vsehi ives, which is normaty estimated ic be barween five and ten years

{k) Employes bensfits
Daflned contribution schemes

Tha Growp operates a number of dafined contrbution schemes The amount charged 10 tha incame statadman in respect of pension cests and other post-mtirament benalts
is tha coninbutions payable in the year Ditferences baween contributions payable in tha year and contrbutions actually paid ane shown as elther accruals or prepaymenis in
the statement of financlal postion The Group has no lagal or consuctive abligation to make any lurther pay to the sch olher than tha contributions due

Defined benofit schemes

The Group has a legacy defined benafit pansion scheme which (s closed to new members and which has one dejemed membar Full actuarial valuations ol tha scheme arg
caried out at loast every hiee years A quakfied independent actuary updatad thasa valuations as at 30 Septambar 2013 For the purposas of these annual upgates,
scheme assols are ncluced at markat value and schems Tablities ars measurad on an actuarial basis using ths projected unit method. Tha delined benalt surplus or geficit
Is included in the Group's statament of financiat position A surplus is included onty to the extent that i is recovarable trough reduced contnbutions in the fulura or through
refunds from the schems The curment service cost, any pasi service costs and the expected ratum on the schems's assals, nal of the impact of the unwinding ol the
discourt on schame Rablites, are included in the incorme statement. Actuarial gains and xissas, including diffarences between the expected and actual relum on scherme
assels, are recognised through the statement ol compranensive income

{I} Financlal instruments

Financlal assets and financlal kabidies are recognised when the Group becomaes a party 1o the contractual provisiona of the financial nstrument. Financal assats are
deracognised whon e contractual righls ta tha cash flowa from the financlal assets expia, of when the financial asset and all substanual risks end rewards gra yansiemed
A financial Habitty i demscognised when it is extingulshed, dischargad, cancelled or expires

Financial assets and financial kabiliies are measured nitaty at tair value plus transaction costs, axcep!t lor knancial assels and fnancia! iabilities carried sl tair valug through
profit or loss, which are measured inrially at lar value Financial assets and Rabilihas are measured subsequanty as describad below

Financizl assats

For the purposa of subsequent measuremant, knancial assats other than thosa dasignatad and eifective as hedgnp nstuments am ¢lassdied as loens and receivablas and
francial assels at{alr valus through prof or loss.

The category determings subsequan! measurament and whether any resutting ncome and expensa s recognised in prof?t or loas or in othar comprahansive income

Loans and receivablos

Loans ark} recaivables an non-denvalve Hnandal assels with fixad or datermingble payments Jat are not quoted o an actwe markat Altar ndial recognition these are
megasurpd at amortised cost ysing the elfactiva interest method, less provision lor impaiment Discounting is omittad where the eltect of discounting s immatarial, The
Group's cash and cash squivalents and rade and other receivabies fall nio this category of inancial instnuments

Finangial assets st inir value through prolit or loss

Financial assets at lair vaiue through prolit or loss mclude finarcial assals that am eithar classifled as hakd for trading or that meet cartam condilona and are designated at
fair value Birough profit of loss upon inliiat racogntion Afl derivatve fnancial instruments (it into tis category except for thasa dasignatsd and affecivg as hedging
instruments for which hadge accounting ls applad

Assats in this calegory ara measured at fair value with the gains and lossas racognisad n praft and loss The far values of dervative fnanctal instrurnents are detamined
by raference 1o axpactad future payments

Financis! Hzbilitles

The Group's financial kabilitles nclude bomowings, trade and othar payables defamred and contingani cansderation, and derfvatve financlal mstryments Finenclal labites
ar@ measured subsequantly at amortised cost using the afiective interast methad axcept for inanclal Eabites hak) for trading or designated at tal value through profit or
loss, which are camled subsaquenty at fak value through profit or l03s  All derivative financial mstruments thai are not designated and effactive as hedging nstrumams are
accounted for al fair vatue with gana and losses recognised in the income statemant Afl changes tn an instument's falk value that ane reportsd v profit or logs are
separataly disciosad in the incomo statamant.

Trade and othar psyables
Tragda payablas are inillally maasured at tair vatue and subsequently measured al smortised cost.
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1 Accounting policles (continuad)
Bomrowinga

Berrowings are indially measured at tav value, net of mansaction costs ncurmed Thay are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the sfiactive nerest
rata method

impairment of financial assels

All financlal assats axcept thosa at la¥ value through profit or loss are subrec! io ieviow lor impaimnent at least al each reporimg date Financial assats are impatred whan
there is any cbjective avidence thal a financial asset or a group of fnancial assets is mpared [hiferant crieria tor the datarmnation of impatnmeant are eppied for sach
catogory of financial assats The Group's nancial assets ara mitsd o loans and recervables and financial assals st fglr value through profit or loss

Indrvidual recevables are consdared for impaimnent whan they ere pasi dus or when other oblective evidence is recelved that a specific counteparty widl dalautt. impaimment
ol trade receivables is presentsd withn othar operating costs'

(tn) Derivative financial insts

Tha Group only enters into darnivelive financial instruments n ondar 1o hedge underlying commerctal exposures The Group dasignales certam denvaives as edher hedges of
fair value ot recognised assets or liabdives cr 8 firm commdment (far value hedge] or hedgaes of highly probable lorecast transactions (cash flow hedges)

Tha Group cumentty has cash fiow hedpes only, relating to interest rats and foreign exchange risk management Al tha inception of tha transaction tha relationshp batwean
hedging nstruments and hedged items, as well s the Group's risk management objective and stralagy lor underaking varous hedge transactions are documented

Assessmanis, bolh at hedge Inception and on an on-going basis of whethar the derivatives thal are used in hedging transacilcas have been and will conlinug 1o be highly
sflective in oifsettng changes in fakr valuas or cash flow hedged items, are also documented.

The efactive portion of tha changes in the fak value of derdvatives that ar dasignatad and quatly as eash fiow hadges Is recognised n a hedgs reserve n equity The gain
or loss in relation to the Ineffactive portion Is recognised Immediately n the Consobdated Staterment of Comprehansiva Income Amounts accumulated i the hedge reserve
in aquiy are transtered to tha Consotdated Statemant of Comprehensive income in the penods when tha hedged ltern will aftect profit and loss

When a hedging ngtrument axpires or is 5ok, or when & hedga nc longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing In equity af that trne
ramains in the hadgng resarves and is recognised in the sama pariods durmg which the hadged commitment or lorecast transaction alfects the incoma statement When a
hedged commitment or lsrecast ransacton is no longers expectad to occur, the cumulalive gan or kass that was reporied in equity is mmediately translerad to the income
statemant.

{n) Shars-bagad payment

The Group lssues shara awards 1o amployses The Group operalas @ number of shara based compensation schemes and spples the raquiremants of iFAS 2 ‘Share based
Payments’

The cost of amployees’ sarvices recelved in exchangs lor tha grant of rights under thase schemes Is measured at the fair value of the equity nstruments granted and ks
charged against profts over the vesting paricd For cash settied schemes the falr value 15 @-assessed each year and any changes aie recognised n the income statement
unti the liapikty is sawed

(o) Leasss

In accordance with IAS 17 ‘Leasas', whara the Group has substantially afl tha risks and rewards of ownership loases are classiisd as finance loases Finance lkeases arp
capitalised at the leasa 3 inception al the lower of tha lalr valus of the leased assel and the present vatue of tha minanum leass paymenls Each lease payment Is aliocated
behwoen the iabdily and fance charges to 2s (o achieve a constant rate on the linance balance outstandng

The assel subjact to the inance loase is deprecraled gvar the sharter of its useful ife and the lease tarm The coresponding rental pbiigations ne! of finance charges are
recognisad as a kabiny

Al other leases ara treated as operating isasas Paymants made under operateg leases ars chanjed to !e imcoma statemam on a stralght-iine basis over the laase tarm
Incenives providad by tha lassar ara cradiiad to tha income statemant on a siralghi-ng basis over the full lease term

{p) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated a1 cost lass accumulated depreciation and impakment losses Cost incluges expandiure that s dirsctly attnbutabie 1o he acqulsition
or construction of hase kems Subsequent costs are Included in the asser's canying emount anly whon 1t is probatde that future economic bensiits associated with the tam
will fiow to the Group and the costs can bo measured reliably Al other costs, including repairs and maintenance costa, are charged 1o ihe income statement m the period in
which they are bcured

Depreciation i3 provided on afl property, plant and equpmant, including those assats held under linance ases, &l rales calulated to wnlg olf the cost of fiked assets lass
thetr estimated rasidual vatue ovas their sxpacied useful ives on tha laiowing bases

Leesshold tmprovemants - Ovar the lease perod
Fumiturs, (bxtures and fitings - 5 years 1o 10 years
Computer haroware - 4 years to 5 years
Compuriar softwarn - J years 1o 10 years

Motor vahicles - 4 years

The assets useluf ivas and residuat values am revigwead ang, if appropriate, adjusted at each balance sheet dale
The gain or lass arising an disposa! or scrappng of an asset is recognised in the income statement.

{q} tneurance inlermediary asseis and Hablitles

Insurance brokers act as agents i placing tha insurahie riska of their chants with insurers and as such genierally are not kabe as princpats for the amounts arising from
such transactions Accordngly receivables astsng from insurance broking transactions e not nciuded as assets of the Group Other than the receivable for fees and
commissions eamaed on the transaction which is mcognised within trade raceivables no recognition of the Insurance ransaction eccurs untd the Group racelvas cash in
respect of pramiums or claims, st which time a corresponding Eablity is gstablished In tavour of the nsurer or the clisnt and recognised on the statemant of financtal posAion
as nsumnce payables

Fiducary cash afising from insurance brokng transactions s included withn insurance cash Tha Group is entitied to retan the investment income on any cash Rows arising
from nsuranca relatad ransactions
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

{r} Dividend distribution
Equity dividands dectared at the discretion of the Company are racognised In the pariod m which they are dectared and approved by the Beard

(s} Non-tecurting Rems

Non-recumming dams are saparataly identied 1o frovidg greater undarstandng of he Group's undanying perfomance itams classified as non-racuming ems incluta
closune costs for busnassas, mstnicturnyg costs, acquisition o5, post acquisition intagration costs, wite offs and othar credus and charges of non-racurring nature that
require separata kKentification in order to provide additional insighl inio he underyng business parfomance To assist in the analysis and understanding of the undarlyng
traging postion of the Group thase tams an summarised n aols 4

(1) Acquisition costs

Acquisition relaled costs are costs the acquirer Incurs o afact a businass combination Those inslude legal fegs, finder's fees, valuabon costs and other prolessional or
consuling leas, which ars axpensad in the period in which thay ara incurrad

Othar acquisition casts incurred which are directly annibutatia to cbiaining nance tn ardar 1o fund the acquistion am not expensed bul included within the debt batance The
costs ara than amaortsad (according to the efiective interast rate method) trough the income Stalement over the poriod of he debt.

{u) Taxation

Cumrent 1ax Is tha expecied tax payable on the taxabia income for tha yaar usng tax ralgs and laws enacled or substantively enacted at the batance sheet date, and any
adiustments to tax payable in raspact of pravigus years

Delgrrad taxation is provided on rial teming ditth es batween the incidencs of ncome and expenditure for taxation and sccounts purposas using the full provision
basgic Defarred tax assals are dnly recognisad to the extent that thay are considered recoverable against fulvr taxable profita Daeferred tax batances are nol discounled
Deterrsd tax is detarminagd using the tax rates thal have baen anached or substantively snacted by the balance sheot dale and are axpacted to apply when the detarred Lax
Hability Is satiled of the delered tax assat is reatised

Changes in delarsd tax assets or liabiities are recognised as a componant of tax axpanse in the income statemant, except where thay relata to tems that are charged or
creditad directly lo aquity in which case the relatad defared tax is also charged or creded diracily to equay

The incoma tax expensa rapresents the sum of cument and deferrad tax
{v) Treasury shares

Traasury shases are deducted from equity Na gan or I0$S ' recognisad on the purchase, sale issue or canceliation of the troasury shares Any consideration pakd or
received is racogniaad dirgctly in aquity

(w) Group reasrves

The sharg pramium account ls the diflerence batween the nominal value of shares issusd end the valus of the considaration recarved Ths use of tha share pramium
agcount s govemad by the Companiss Acl 2006

{x} Pravisions

Provisions are recognsed whesn the Group has a presant ob'igaton (egal or constructive) es a result of a past avent it is probable tha! the Group will be requirad to saftia
that obligation and a teflable estimale can be mads of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision s the best estimats of tha conskisration requued ic se'te the present obiigation at ths bakance sheel date taking inlo eccount the
risks and uncartainties surrcunding the obligation

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgemants

Egtimatas and assotlated assumpticns are basad on historical experience (and various othar factors that are beliavad to be raasonable under the circumstances), the
rasults of which fomm the basts of making the judgsmenta about carmying valuas of assals and Habilities that are not readily apparen! from other sources Actual results may
differ lrom these estinales The astimates and urdanying assumptions are raviswed on &n ongomyg basis Revisions o accountnp estmatas ase recognised i the penad In
which the estimale is revised o the ravision affacts only that period, or in the period of the revision and tuture perods if the rgvision affects both curent and luture periods

The estmates and assumptions that have a signdicant effact on the camying amounts of assals and fabides are
a) Froperty, plant and equipment

Assets ere camed at hstorical cost loss dopreclation cakutaled to write off the cosi of such aasets over their estimatad uselul kves Managsmert delarmnes the estmated
usaful ves and retaled depreciation charges al acquisition Tha esthmated useful ie Is raviawed annually and the depraciation charge is revised where usalul bves ara
subsaquently found to ba different 1o those previously astrnatsd

b) tmpakmaenit of asseis

As$e33ing tha impairmani of assety reguias of management lo datemmng e vaiue b usg of assats being considerad tor impairment Datarmning such a value requires of
managemant to foracast future cash Mows associated with the assats, and to determine an appropriate discounl rate to datermne a present valua for thosa cash llows

c¢) Delerad consideration

The vale cf delemred consideration payabie is contngen! upon the resufts of the acquired businesses and any othier specfied parformancs criteria et out in the applicable
sale and purchase agreements Budgets and projections lor acquuud busine ssas for relevant parioos arg reviewed ennually
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3 Segmantal analysia

IFRS 8 'Operatng Sagmenis’ raquies operating sagments io be determinad basad on the Group $ intemal reportng to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("COOM?) The
CODM has been determmnad {0 be the Board of Directors, as it is thes body which is pnmartly responsbie for the allocation of resources to segmants and the assessmand of
peromance ¢f the segments

Thas CODM uses Eamngs bafore Interest, Tax, Deprociation and Amaortisation ("EBITDA"), a3 reviewed on a monthly basts, as the key messure of the segments’ results as
& refiects the segments’ undarying tradng paromancy Ior he paricd under svakzation

The diractors consider that the Group s trading activilias comprise two business segments (baing the provision of broking and underwriting services} and that the Group
operatas n a markat tha! is not bound by geographical constraints For managemeni purposes, tha Group taports is parformance batwaen two {ee structuras being
‘Underwritng revenue’ and 'Broking revenue’ Revenua information analysng e aloramanionsd spEt between undsrwiting and broking ts prasented betow

Head oflice and
consolidation  Total continuing
Yenr to 30 Sapiamber 2013 Broking Underwnting adjusiments operations
£D00 £000 £000 £000
Feas and commlssion 124 045 33,5568 . 163,601
Cther operating income 1 608 1,406 - 3,014
Other operatng costs (104 780 (28,651) {1838) {134 722}
Depraciation and amostisaton (4.633) {777 {575) {5.585)
Operating prailt 18,237 12,134 {2.463) 25,908
France ncoms (24) (6) 207 177
Finance cosis {1,163) 92 {6,029) 7.110)
Changea in tha fair vatua of defened consideration (2 727) : 371 {3 098)
Pruflt beiore taxation 12323 12,220 {8,666) 15,877
Income lax fxpanse {4 106) {3381) {1.286) 57713
Profit aftsr taxation 11217 8,839 {9,952) 10,104
Minonty inlerasts (2 143) {661) - (2 804)
MNat profit 9.074 8,178 _(2‘9__511 7&.0_
EBITDHA (excluding f ing and acquisition costs) 24,438 13,455 {2011) 35,880
Non-recurring costs {2,648) (544) 123 (3,069)
Acquisition costs (o1 - . (918}
Saa nota 4 lor a lurthar analysis of non racuming costs
Haad offica and
consotication  Total continuing
Yaar to 3¢ September 2012 Broking Underathing adjustiments operalions
£000 £000 £000 €000
Feas and commissian 74,7153 34,166 - 108,919
Other opermting ncome 78 1272 . 1,650
Other we&m cosis o [615 ;SE; {27;; 1) {t g;g! {94,999%)
Dapraciation and amortisation 1,604 1) { 1 {3.062)
COperating grofit 7,745 7,148 2,383) 12,509
Finance income (64} (133} 312 118
Fnance costs (1,721} {1 (2 445) (4,168)
Change in he leir value of delarrad consideration {1,503} - . {1
Profit before taxation 4,457 7.0 4,578} €.95
Income tnx expanse {2,148} {2.420) 679 (3,887}
Profit after taxabon 2311 4591 {3,837) 3,065
Minority Interasis {1,861} {264) - {2,145)
Net profil 430 4327 FEXEY %20
EBITDA {axciuding non racurring and acquisition tams) 12,122 9,902 {1433} 20,593
Non-recurring cos's (1 020} 12,035) {215) (2,280)
Acquisttion costs {1,743 . 1,743}
Sas note 4 for a further analysis of non-recurrmg costs
BGaographic segment analysis
The geographical analysis has been provided lof continung oparations only
Fass and commissions 2013 202
£000 £000
untted Kingdom 40,245 19,396
Amaricas 28 987 18,850
Northem Europe 22,292 16,983
Far East 24,103 14,467
Australasla 19,567 14,3689
Scuthem Europe 12,538 12,764
Middle Easl 12,549 10,453
Eastem Eurape 1811 1,220
Alrica 958 as7

Total 163,501 106.919
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4 Operating profit
Operaing profil for the year is stated ater charging/{crad ting)

Deprectaton of property, plant and squipmant
Amortisation ol intangible assels

Protassional Feas in relation lo the Group's audtor
Audit servicas
- statutory aucit of the Company
- statutory nudk of subsidiaries
- audt g y and supp ary raporting
Al other servicss
« Taxation services
Professional leas associated with othar advisory services

QOperating lease rentals
~ land and bulidings
- equipment

Foreign exchangs gains

MNon-recurring dems gnised In tha in stat t
Termination and reptacament of sanior axaculives

Past acquisikon tntegration costs

Costs mailatad 1o the repurchase of share caplal (5ee Nota 25)
Gasts of undamental estructuring

Writa-off costs

Goodwill Impalrment

Provision for claims

Provision {see note 21}

Incramantal ampioyes costs related to refinancing
Other nonrecuring admini F P

Total non-tacurting administralive axpanses

Acqulaltion costa

Acquisition costs in the period arg in ralation 1o the acquisition ol FP Group Limites and controlied anttias (the 'FP Maring Group'), Northedge Forsikringsmagiing AS,
Hawden Brasd Administragdo e Coretagam Do Saguros Lida (‘'ConseT) and Howden Employee Benelfis Limited Management have separatoly p
costs in the income statamant to taciiate an undersianding of the Group $ undarying perlomnanca

FP Marine Group
Northedge Forslkringsmaging AS
Howdan Brasi Adminisiragio e Corretagem De Seguras Lida
Howden Employee Banealis Limilad
HBQ Asia Haldings Ltd and controfied anthes
Windsor Limited and controllod entities
Howden Energy intanghle azsets
Pralessional Aish Solutions LLC
Acquisition cosls
Acquishions costs paid in raspsct of prior year acquisiions
Total acquisition costs paid

5 Financo costs

Interast pxpenso

HSBC revolvmg credit faciity and overdralt repaid 3 July 2012

HSBC and Lioyds senior facility

Finance wases

Other Ioan interest

Amuorniszlion of bank and len arangemant faes
Shareholder loan interost

Sharehotder loan nola interes!

interast income
Bark intarest

Net finance costs irom conlinuing opaerations
Nat finance costs irom discontinuing cparations
Net finance costa rom opemtions

Falr valua through proft and 0ss  deferred considaration {nota 23a}

Change In the fair value of deferred consideration

2013 2012
£'000 £000

2979 1867
3,008 1,195
5,985 3062
b =] ar
502 489

0 44

TAS 27

575 750

5,080 3ess

194 221
{658) {B33)
2013 22
£'000 £'30p

763 1504

:38) 290
394 .

2,068 1794

- 1,671

186 100
482 -

- (285)

_333

3,001 1,486
3,063 3280

d these acquisticn
2013 2012
£'000 £000
759 -
54 -

80 79

25

. 245

- 1,243

- 168

. a

1743

1,15 1,743
2013 2012
£'000 €000

- {465)
(3,790) {869)
{8} (4)
{376) {603}
(985) (864)
{1,704) {915)
{247) {448)
(7,110) 4 189)

177 115
{5,933} [4053)

- 15
_{6,933) {4 038)

3,088] 1,502
3,098) (1.503)
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6 Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees, including deectors emplioyed by the Group dumng the yaar was

Directors and senlor managament
tnsurance professionals
Administrabon

The aggregate payroll cosis of the sbave employees including directors, were as folows

Wages and sabiries
Soclal secunty costs
Penglon contributions

Directors' remunerstion

Aggragate emolumants
Agyragate pension contributions

Highast paki director
Salary and benafts
Pansion contnbulions

Number of dirgctors at 30 Seplembaer

Dunng the year ended 30 Saplernber 2012, a Dwector recenad £258 000 in tolat by way of compensabion for loss of ofice
7 Taxation

Tax expenss comprises

UK cosporation ox on protits lor the year

UK adjustmants in raspect of previous years
Overseas fax

Total current lax

Deferted tax

Origmatien and reversal ol tmang diferancas
Impact of changs in UK tax rata
Adjustments in respact ol pravious yaars
Total gelarrad tax {note 24}

Tax on profit on ordinary aclivities

The total charge for the year can be reconclled to the sccounting profit as follows.
The tax assassad fof tha yaar is highar than the standard mite of comarmbon tax of 23 5% (2012 25%) due to the following reasons

Profit on ordinary activities befcre tax
Profit on ordinary actvigs multolad by the standard rate of corporaten tax In the UK of 23 5% (2012 25%)

Tax stects of

Expansas not deductble (or 1axation purposes

Ovarseas tax by sxcess of UK tax

Tax lessas utlised durng the yoar

Adjustments tp UK tax charge in raspaect of provious years
Adjusiments lo overseas tax charge i respect of provious years
¥mpact of changa tn UK tax rale

Totai tax sxpanse recagnised in income statement

Tha bignded rate of carporation tax in the UK Is 23 5% (2012 25%)

2013 2012
Number Number
129 23
874 588
418 n
1,431 1 020
2013 2012
£ 600 £000
79,004 54,735
7310 5272
4,841 2 BO2
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
1,379 1,628
91 54
1,470 1,682
459 618
75 18
334 838
Number Numbar
8 ]
2012 2012
£'000 £000
2,067 483
{169) 18
4,258 3,834
£,154 4,333
(484) {489)
[:H] 47
39 {4}
{381) {446)
5773 3,887
201) 2012
f 000 £000
15,877 6952
3,7t 1738
1,774 1,652
269 642
(63) {196)
{217) 12
14 )]
65 47
5773 3 887

Folowng the enactment of tha Finance Act 2012 the main rate of corporation tax has reduced for the financlal year baginning 1 Aprl 2013 from 24% to 23%., this was
anacted on 17 July 2012 The Finance Act 2013 was enaciad on 17 July 2013 which raeduces the corporation tax rate 10 21% from 1 April 2014 and 10 20% from t Aprtl

2015 The Group s UK defarred tax balencas have been recognisad at 20%

Tha tax charge lor the year ended 30 September 2013 was £5,773,000 (2012 £3,687,000) which was 36%, of profit before tax (2012 56%)

Excludng the impact of acquisition costs and changes In the falr value of datemed considaration, the tax charge for the year anded 30 Septembar 2013 was £5,773,000

{2012 £2,887,000) which was 29% of profit beforo tax (2012 38%)
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8 Eaminge per share

Bask: aamings par share s caicutated by dwiding the profil afar tax for the fmancial yeas attributable to equity hokd

ordnary shares in issve during the year

ol tha parent by the waightad avaraga number of

Dilytad gamings per share is cakutated as for the basic eamings psr share with a further adjustment to the weighted average numbes of ordnary sharas to reflect the effects
of all potential diution and any ncrease in share capltal during the year Tha dihiied aamngs par shara is nct presentad n tha fnanclal stataments because the impach of the

ditulion ts bnmatarial The mpac! on the eamings per shase Is 0 02p

The weghiad average numbar of ordinary shares includes shares heid by the Employee Benefit Trust {see note 25)

‘Woightad averege ter of shares used in calculation of bask samings per share
Eltact of potential dilition - share optons
Weighted average number of shares usad in caiculation of dliuted samings per share

The aammngs par shere 8 derived trom the figures as olows
2013

Pruofit altsr tax

Minority intarast

Profit aftar tax and minority intereats

Change in lair value of defemed consideration

Bafora change in falr value “FV* of deferradt cansideration

Loas on disposal of discontinued oporatons

Balore FY adjustments on delerred considecation and profit on disposal - baslc
Non-recurmng costs

Tax elecl on non Acuming costs

Baefore FV adjustments on deferred conaideration and non-recuring costs
Acquisition costs

Bafora FV acjust ta on del: d {daration and non-recurring costs and acquisition cosls

2012

Prodil after tax

Mnority Intarast

Profit after tax and minarity interesls

Change in {air valug of defemed considpration

Batore change in falr vatue *FV” of daterrad consideration

Proft an disposat of discontinued oparanons

impaiment of non {nanclal assets

Bafora FV adjustments on daferrad cansidaration and profit on disposal - basic
Non-recuring costs

Tax eftact on non fecurmng costs

Belore FV adjustments on delerred consideralion and non recumng casts
Acquisition costs

Before FV agjustmants on delerrad consideration and non recutring Costs and acquisition costs

From continuing oparatlons

Eamings par shars - basic

Balore falr value *FV* adjustments on deferred considaration - basic

Balore FV adjusimants on datarred consweration and non recurring costs

Before FV adjusinonts on deferted considaration and non recurring costs and acquisition costs

From discontinued operutions
Eamings per share - basic
Before FV adjustments on delerred consderalion and proflt on disposal - bask

From continuing and discontinued operations

Eamings per shars - basic

Before FV adjustments on delered considaralion basic

Bafore FV ad|ustments on delemed consdemtion, non recurming costs, acquisition casts and profil on
disposa) - basic

The adjustment lor non-recurring costs includes a tax saving st the curent rate of 23 5%

2 Dividends

2012 2032
oor's 000's
50,740 44,328
20 301
51,041 44 627
Continuing  Dlacontinued
L] opseraticna Total
£'000 £ago £'060
10,104 (230) 9,874
e {2.5204) — 2 A4
7,300 1230) 7,070
2,098 - 3
10,398 {230) 10,168
. 267 287
16,358 57 70.455
3,069 - 3,069
{721} . 721}
12,748 57 12,803
918 - 918
13,664 57 13,72%
Contruing uisconmuaa
coemlions operations Tota!
£000 £000 £000
3068 17,507 20,572
(2.145) - {2,145)
920 17,507 18,427
1,503 . 1,503
2,423 17,507 19,930
- (17 123) {17.123)
- 1,196 1,196
2,423 1,560 4,003
3.280 B 3,280
(820) - (820}
4,883 1,580 6 463
1,743 - 1,743
6,626 1,580 8,206
2013 2012
£000's £000's
7,300 14 4p 920 21p
10,398 205p 2,423 55p
12,748 25 tp 4,£83 110p
13,664 26 9p 6,626 150p
(230) {05p) 17,507 39.5p
59 01p 1580 3 6p
7070 119p 18,427 41 6p
10,168 200p 19,830 a50p
13,721 69p 8,206 18.5p

‘the Group has paid intenm dvidends in the year of £1,991,000 (2012 £1 200 000) The Group has not dactarad any lurther dwvidends during the year ended 30 Seplember

2013 (2012 nH)
10 Goodwill

Opening net book valus as al 1 Octeber 2012
Acquisions (see Note 34)

Disposals and impairmants

Remeasurement of assets and itabiitias at acquisiion

Roclassifcations and ¢ther adfustments
Closing nal book value as at 30 Seplember 2013

Opening net book vatue as at 1 October 2011
Acquisttions

Disposals end mpaiments

Ciosing nel book valis as st 30 September 3012

Positive Impairment
g ioases Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
121098 (5,000) 116,098
8,201 - 8,201
{2.099) 1,962 (13n
(572) - (572)
_{857) - (657)
125971 {3,038} 122,933
49,961 {3,808} 48,156
71,153 - 71,153
{18) (1.195) (1211}
121,098 (5,000)_ 116,098
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10 Goodwlll {continuad)

Fo! the purpose of | imp 1t lesting goodwill is atlocated o the followng cash-generating units ("CGUs") which ara the units axpectad to benais from tha synerg es
of the busine ss combnations m which the geodwill ansas
Broking Undarwriting Total Broking Undamwritng Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 E000
Linked Kingdom 71,488 12,259 83,747 71,821 12259 83,680
Europe 14,563 2,462 17,128 12,750 2,462 15,212
Australasia - 2,612 1,812 - 2812 2,812
Amaricas 5.851 . 5.851 7,058 - 1,056
Mridlo East 1698 - 198 198 - 198
Far Easl 8,180 - 9,180 3120 - 3120
Other 4,220 - 4220 4,220 - 4220
Gaodwill at 30 September 105,800 17333 122,833 88 765 17,333 116098

The recovarabie amaounts of the CGUS are datarmined frem value in use cakculations The primary driver lor the cakulations b the va'uahon of each CGU et thoend ol a
three yoar forocasy, at which stage projected profitabiidy s considerad to equate o nomalized future cash flows The valuation is basad on a multpia of projacted revanue
and profii discounted lo net present vatua These calcutations use profections based on financia! forecasis approvad by managaman! covering a three year period The key
assumptions for the valus In use calculations are those reganding the discount rates growth rates, and vaiuation multiples Managemen! #striatss discount ailas usng
cumrant marksl assessments of the tme vatye of money and the Group 5 cost of caplizl The growth reies withan the financizl lorecasts are datemminad based an

L 3 ige of the b and expeciztions lor marke| devetocpment. Valuation multiples applied refiaclt managemen!'s ntemal modol kor tha valuation of

1. L Lok

hsura?!ce ntenmaoiaries

1t intangible assets

Qpeaning net baok vakie 1 October 2012
Exchange ditterzncas

Additions

Acquinton of subsidiary (sea nate 34)

Amortisation

Closing nst book value s at 30 September 2013
Costs

Accumulated amortisaton

Cloaing net book vatue aa at 30 September 2013

Opening nal book valua 1 Octaber 2011
Exchangs diffarences

Agditions

Acnuisition of subsdary

Amartisation

Reclassificatans

Closing net book valus as al 30 Seplembar 2012
Casts

Accumulated amorisation
Closing net book valus as at 30 Septembes 2012

12 Property, Plant and Equipmenl

Cont

At1 October 2012
Addltions

Exthange dilferences
Disposats and impaimenta
Al 30 September 2013

Accurmudatad depreclation
A1 October 2012
Oepreciatan tor the year
Exthange dilfsrances
Cisposals and mpasmsnts
At 30 Sepiamber 2013

Al 30 Seplamber 2013
At1 Oclober 2012

Patents and Cusiomer
software relationships Other Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
1,758 21,281 23N 25,450
14 14
a0 93 15 188
- 3,836 418 4,262
{44) {2.824) [138) [3.008)
1,834 22,400 2,664 26,898
2,150 26,154 3,190 31,694
{516} (3.754} (526) {4,796}
1,834 22,460 2,664 26,898
1,454 2206 6C0 4260
(19) N (19)
366 19724 2083 22172
286 - - 288
(234} {649) (312) (1,195)
155} . - [55)
1,798 21 284 2,371 25 450
2210 22211 2,759 21,240
{472) {930) (388) {1.750)
1,798 21,281 2371 25450
Fixtures,
Leasshold Wotor fittings snc
Impr i¢ hict quip t Total
£000 £000 €000 £'000
5,482 209 14,804 20,798
1135 120 2,877 4,132
(27) @) 10 {26}
{47) {37) (189) {333}
6,541 521 17502 24,568
1,342 273 9,888 11,503
628 102 2.247 2.978
{44) (6) {120} (7o)
{39) {79} {178) 294)
1,887 291 11,83% 14,017
4,656 232 5,663 10,551
4 140 238 4918 9292

A3 a1 30 Seplember 2013 the not book valug of Langdio feod assets held under faance Mases was £1,502.500 (2012 £1,109,000)
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12 Property, Plant and Equipmant {continusd)

Fixtures,
Loasehaid Motor fitings and
mprovements vohicles equipmant Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Oclober 2011 2870 191 9,718 12,779
Additions 2,554 58 2,504 5516
Acquisiton of subsidiary 1,036 14 5325 6,475
Exthange diferences 307 181 579 1,067
Disposals and impaiments {1285) {35) 3722) {5 042)
Al 30 Seplamber 2012 5482 509 14,804 20795
Accumulatod depreciation
Al 1 October 2011 1.96% L] 5.428 7 485
Dapreclation lor he year ass n 1,522 1,948
Acqulskion of subsidary 209 54 4,218 4,551
Exchange differencas 167 55 763 a8s
Disposals and impairmants 11 358} {5) (2.103) {3 466)
Al 30 Septernber 2012 1.342 273 9 88g 11.503
Met book vatue at 30 September 2012 4,140 236 4918 9,294
13 Investmants heid at cast
2013 2012
£:000 £000,
{nvestment al bagmnng of year 1073 775
Acqulsitions during the year 549 298
Net investment 1,622 1073

In January 2013, Howden Insurance Brokers AB purchased 20% of Soassurance Danmark A/S ("SO Assurance”}, an insurance broker located in Cenmark, for £150,000
PUAL Intamatipnal Limiled acquired 12 9% of DUAL Asset Underwriting Limited, 8 UK-based insurance comparty In May 2013 for £250,000

Tha Group ganed savaral invasimants as pan of major scquisisions A 24% investmant is hald in HY Manne Risks Limted with a value of £A5 000 at year end, purchased 85
pen ot he FP Mating acquistion As pari of the acquisibon of Windsor Limited e Group acquired a 37 5% interast n Charterama BV an undarwming agency based in the

Natheriands The value of this investment is £84 000
The Group continuas to hold its Invasiments i Howden Korea Limited (39 9%) and GRC Howden Raasurans Brokargi Anontm Sirkatl ("GRC} {9 93%), e vokerage based

in Turkay
The Group doas not have board representation and s unabls to axert any sigrilicant influance on the financial and operatng policies of thesa investmanis

14 investments [n assoclat
During the year Howdaen Broking Group Limiad acquired 25% of Howden Patagonia Corredores de Seguros Socedad ¢a Responsabixiad Limitada ("Patagonia”) a stant
up insurancs broker incorporated and hased in Chile for £353,000

Howdan Broking Group Limited owns 25% of the equity shirehoking and also hold a seat on the board of the company, resulting In significant nfiuances avar the fancial
and oparating poicies ol Palagonia

2012
£'000
investment al cost as3
Profit from assoclate .
Nal investmant in associato — 03
The Group has nol inciuded the results of Patageonia in these accounts a3 the amaunis are degmed immaterial
15 Trude and other receivablen
2013 2012
_£000 £000
tnsurance tacevables 43970 25789
Other aabiyrs 6,215 5643
Prapayments 7,436 8,193
Corparation tax recoverabla 2,303 2324
81,024 39 449
3 2012
Non-cunant £000 £000
Dther deblors 139 b2
138 62
Total trade and other recalvabies 62,063 40,011

The directors considar that the carryng amaunt of rads and ather racewables approxmalos thelr lak value




Hypanion Insurance Group Limitod

16 Cash and cash equivalanta
2013 2012
C'0H £000
Cash at bank and in hand = stariing 78,502 36,253
Cash at bank and in hand - gther curencies 54,952 100 410
Bank overdrafts [(585) {278)
172,888 136 385
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Flduciary 154,663 113,438
Own funds 18,238 22897
172 888 136 385

The Group holds short lenm doposits that are made for varying perlods, dapending on the cash requirements of the Group These deposds eam interast at market short lam
depost ratas, The Group has unmesirictad access 10 thase deposits which maet tha dafinttion of cash and cash equivalents

Fiduclary balances comprise client and insui9r monlas and (aes and commissions aamead but uncrawn al tha balance shest date Thesa ara hald in ingurance trust fune
bank accounts for the benelt of chants and nsurars

A portion of the Group’s cash balance is nol avadable lor use dua (o kegal restriclions and controls At 30 September 2013, the Group s restricted cash batance s £2 1 (2012
Et.2m)

17 Trade and other payables less than cna yesr

ma 2012
E'000 £000
Insurance payables {152,768} {106 688)
Trade end othar payalies {5.752) {6.140)
Deferrad considaration (362} {3,163)
Other tax and soclal security {2,435) {2 092)
Accruals ang delerrad incoma {17,884) 118 210}
(27,09 25 705)
Total trade and othar payables {179 851) (136 593)
Tha diractors consider that tha carrying amoun! of rado and aMar payablas approomates fhalr far valye
213 2012
£'000 £'000
Corporation ax payable {5.241) {4 124)
18 Trade and other payables due after more than ona yesr
Amounts faling due aftar more than ona ygar 2083 2012
Deforred conskieration - 0
Trade and other payahies {2 415) 13,150}
19 Borrowings
2013 2012
Current £'000 £'000
Loana lrom ralated partios {1440) {198}
Bank borrowings (20,823} {2.737)
Finance Jease kabiities {81a) {442}
{22,901) {3 378}
2013 2012
Non-cumant £'000 £
Bank bormowings {G6,146) (63,718
Loans Irom relaled partios (20,501) {11.564)
Fnance lsasa Gabiitias (885} (815)
Othar loans - Menorah Matachim Insurance Limited {1,182} (15421
{80.674) (77 439}
Bank borrowings

The bank borrowings inctude tho syndicated tackties with HSBC and Lioyds Banking Group of £70m, entered iMo upon acquistiion of the Windsor group in 2012 The
{acites are spit inlo a £30m Amorising Facity (Feckty A) payable oves the course of the fivo yaars, and a £40m Bullet Fackdy (Faclity B) payable at the end ol {ha five yaar
tam £3m of Faclity A was repaid dunng 2013

During thae year the Group also drew down on an acquisition faciity end a revolving credil factity £6 1m has baen drawn down on the acquisition facility lor the year ended
30 Sapiamber 2013 out of a total availabla facidty of £10m Tha revolving credd facility has a balance of £16 5m at year and The ravolving cradll facitity is ctassifisd as a
currani tabllity whie tha acquisition faciily is 8 Jong-tam Labiity

The lackilas baarintarast which is caleutated based on LIBOR phus margn The margin is ddferent lor each tacitty end reduces as the adjustad laveraga raduces lor tha
See nota 40 for changes to bank barmowngs occuring after the balance shaet data

Loans {rom related parties

Following tha changes in shareholdng of the Company and tha repurchase of the Group's shams capial (ses Note 25), the shareholder loan notas from 6P Marsh and 3i
Group Pic of E4 1m wara tully repaid B P March A Company Limited {*BP Marsh') noreased thelr ican to the Groupt to £6m, which is nepayanie by Octaber 2017 and bears
intam st ol LIBOR + 5% (minimum 7 5% per annum) The loans from Murslo Invesiments S L and (nversicnes Muroea S L contdnua to Bass intarest al LIBOR +65% (minmaum
9%) and ars bath repayabia during 2014 These loans ama secured by a debenture over the assets of the Company
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15 Borrowings (continuad)

Loan notes trom related partias

Ag pant of the FP Manne acquisition, loan notes totaing £6 6m were issued during the year The A loan notes of £1,684,541 have a hnal redemption date of § February 2018
with an intgrest rate of 9% The B kan notes hold a conversion option to convert inio A shares of the Company Savara! sharsholders have exarcised this option during 2013
1o acquirg 168 300 shares, wini the opiion period expimg 5 June 2014 At year end tha B loan nates had a batanca of £1,649,598, bearng an intarast rate of 0 5% por
annum The C loan notes of £3,954,517 with an tnterest rate of 5% wil be setled in cash by 5 Fabruary 2018

A loan ngie to Hendricks & Co was issued in May 2013 of €5.5m, attracing an iterast rate of EURIBOR +3 5% The lean note has e Gnal redemption dats of 1 October
2015

As part of the Windsor acqusillon In 2012, the Company Issued Loan Notes of £5 125,000 These are redeamabie should Hyperion either ba sold or in the avent of an inital
pubiic olanng If naither of hase aventa accut, the linal mdemption data ts 3 October 2017 Thioughout the loan term, intarast s payabla al a rate of §% per annum

Other loans - Menarsh Miviachin insurance Limited

The Group has a loan from Menorah Mviachan insurance Limited with a camyng value of £1.2m at 30 Septamber 2013 The loan attracts both a fixed componaenl of intergst
al 6 2%, and a variabla componant of interest a1 CP1 + 3 3%, payabio in quarlorly instaiments over five years The lban is securad by both a local Israeli law securty a3 well
as s floatng charge ovar the assets of the bomowng subsidiary company, Howdan General and Marne tnsurance Brokers (2011) Uimited Howdan insuranca Brekera
{2002) Lmhed also provided a local israel Law security ovar s income flow, and agread not to provida any security in lavour of any third parties (negalve pladge), axcludmg
platges that woukl be given in the ordinary course of business and there are certain resiriction on distrbutions of dividends by the company

The canfying amounts and the falr vatua of borrowings are as tofiows

Carrying smount Fair vatue
2013 2012 2013 2012
Current £'000 £ 000 £°060 £'000
Losan from related parties (1,448) (397} {1,440) {197)
Bank bormowings. {20,823} {2 737} (20,823) 2,737)
Finance leasa labiltes {538) (444) (628) {444)
(22.501) {3 378) {22.901) (3 378)
Carrying smount Falr value
2013 2012 2012 2012
Non-curtent £'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Bank berrowings {64,148) 163,718) {66,148) (83,718)
Loans and loan notes from relatad parties {20.,501) {11,564} {20,501} {11,564)
Fmance gase labiles (B65) {815) (865) {615)
Other loans - Menarah Mivtachim Ingusance Limited {1,162) {1.542) {1,162) {1 542)
(88,674) {77,439) {B8,674) (77 439)
20 Liguldity put oplion
201 012
£000 £ 000
Liquidity put option {48.489) (48 118}

On 3 July 2012, 6 876,900 'A’ erdinary shares of £0 01 each {the Windsor consideration shargs”) wem [$3ues 1o shareholders of Windsar Limited as pan of the
considaration paid for the Windsar Group acquisition Under Sva terms of tha acquishion, the Company agreed that i no iPO or sale of the company occurs before 27
Saptamber 2017, the holders of the Windsor consideration sharas wid have the right to convart ther shares nto kban notes which wouk! ba repayable in 2022 This
constitutes a pul opticn for the holders of e sharas (e Equidity put opton™)

Tha Equidity put option has a ¢ap on the value of loan noles which can be issuad ol £50m The Group has mcognised the maxmuym redemption amount of £50m which has
been disccuntad 10 presant vale

Management does not balieve the liquidty put option will crystatise in five yoars' tme, as it is expectad thal there will be other exit stralsgies avaltable io e hokiars In the
event of an IPO or sak of the Company balors Septambaer 2017, tha put option woul! be cancaeled and the labikty wniten back o eguity agansi the Iquidity put aption
reserva In the unikaly avant tiat tha put oplion s exercised loan notes will be issued to the holders of the put option in exchange for thek 6,876,900 A ocdnary shates The
shares cbtaned by tha Compeany through this exchanges woult be cancefed, with a transfes from share pramium ana shara capital to a capital redemption reserve The net
impact of this transaction on tha income statameni and on the stalement of financial postion is anlicipated o be Enil

21 Provisions
EAD
provisions
£'000
Al 1 Oclobar 2012 877
Arising from acquistions and disposals &6
Additions 75
At 30 Septemnber 2013 1518

22 Financo Loaaes
The Group holds a portion of its property plant and equpment under fmance leases The Group has optons (o purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of
the lease lerms Tha Group s obligabons under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title ta the leased asssts

Interast rates underdyng ak obligations undar fnance 'aases are ixed al respactva contract datas ranging #om 2% 10 7% per annum

Preasnt valua of minimum leass

Minimum leasa payments
—— DAVTSEDIR
013 2012 201 2012
£'000 £000 £'000 £0a0
Naoi tatar than ons year {578} {369) {514) {317)
Later than one yeer and not later than five years (+.085) (814) {990) (740)
Later than five years - - . -
(1.637) (1183 (1,504) {1,057}
Lass futurp fnanca charges 133 126 - .

Prasent vaiue of mintmium leass repayments {1,504) {1057 {1,504) (1,057}
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22a Catagories of financial assets and Habllltins
The camying amourts presentad i the stalement of financial posiion relats 1o tha following catagorias ol assats and Eabilties

Loans and Fair value

30 Seplember 2013 £'000 £°000
Trade and other receivables 52,063 -
Cash and cash equivatents 18,2315
Trade and other payablas {29,508) -
Corporabion tax labfitas (5.241) -
Short-term barrowings £22,801) -
Long-temm borrowings (88,678} .
Derivativa financial instruments

Farward loragn cumancy contracts * - m

Intarast ralg swaps - 44

Futurg payments to minority interests due i less than one year - {837}

Futurs payments to minadty interests due in more than one year - {19,761}

Liquidity put option - {48 489)

* Forward forsign cummency contracts are designeled and etlective hedging nstruments

Assats/ (kabditios) that are measurad at tair value are recognised on the statament of financia! posilion and gams or losses am recognised in prolit and loss Tha fair values
of derivailve financial nstinements are determinad by relerance 10 Bxpactad futurs payments
Loans ana
racelvabies/ Fair valua
other inanclal  through

liabidias profit or loss
30 Saptember 2012 £000 £ 000
Trada anc cthes recevables 2001 -
Cash and cash squivalents 224897
Trada and other payables (32 BSS5) -
Corporation tax Babidies (4,124} -
Shon tarm borowings (3,278} .
Long-term borrowings (77,439 .
Forward [otekgn curency contracls - .
Forward foreign currency contracts - a1§
Interast raia swaps - 373
Futura payments ta minonly intaresis dus i less than one year - {3.203)
Fulure paymanis 1o minority intorasts dup & more than ona year - {10,057
- {48 118)

Liquidity put opiion

23b Derivative financlal mstruments

Tha Group usas forward gxchanga contracts lo reduce the risk associated with sales denomnated in foraign currancies for Howden Insurance Brokars Limiad and Dual
Intarnationa! Underwriling Limited At 30 Saptamber 2012 these were culstandng contracts with a lair vatua of £722,000 (2012 £816,000) in tavour of tha Group lot the
purchase of toreign currencias i the nomal course of busness

Tha Group also has intgrest rale swap transaclions to hadge the risk assoclaled with the variatle interast payatie on its keng 1 bank borrowmgs At 30 Septermnber 2013
thare ware gutstanding contracts with a fair value of £244,000 (2012 £373,000) in favour of the Group (in lavour of the HSBC and Licyds Banking Group in the prior year),
all of which are 1 roceive loatng/fpay fixed mierest rate swaps

The fair valug of tha ebova contracts bs calculated using the mark o market rates pravailrig at the end ol the financial yaar Furthar detail ncluding sensitvity analysis an the
fawr value of outstanding contracts 15 contaied below

The carrying amounts for the Group's dark fnancial ts may be further analysed as foliows

2013 2012
Fair value of current and non-turrant derivativa assele/(liabiiies) £000 £ 000
Foralgn exchange lorward conlracts * 722 816
Intarast rate swaps® 244 (373)
Future payments to minority shareholdars {20.418) (33.260)
Nat tair valug of derivatives. {19,452} (12 B17)

* These contracts are designaled and ase effective hedging instruments
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23c Financial lability an payrments to minority interesta

The fair value ol the Group s inancial Isbiity on payments to minarity inierasts at the year end was £21,380 000 (2012 £13 260 000)
The tuture commamants include tha aam-oul due on recent acquisdions and tha tuture Babéity on put and call options The option kabikty & caried at fair vakue and revalued

each year with movemsnts going through tha incoms stalament. The Eabidies as a! 30 September ara as folows

Hendricks & Co GmbH DAC insurance Agency Eam out

Hendricks & Co GmbH DA nsurance Agency Put and Call dption
Howden Brasi Administracho e Cormatagem De Seguros Lida Eam out
Howden Brasi! Administragfo o Cormgtagem Da Saguros Ltda Put and Call option
HBG Asia Holdings Limited and controled antities Put and Call option
FP Group Limited and controliod entities Eam out

FP Group Limited Put and Cat option

Horthedga Forsikingsmeging AS Eam cut

Howdan Employes Benelits Limited Eam out

Howdan nsuranca Brokers AB Put and Cal option

Howden [barta S.A. Put and Call option

Total

Non- detivalive portion ctassifiad as trade and other payablas

Total derivative Uabilities on payments to minority Interpato

23d Financial Instruments hald at fair vatue

Tha disclosurs of fair value measurements by leval s assessed usmg the Ioliowing lab value moasurermont higranchy
» quotad pricas (unadjusted) in active markets (or identica! asaets or Rabilties {Lavel 1),

* nputs other than quoted prices inciuded wihin Leval 1 that sre ohservabla for the assat or labilty {Level 2}, and

= Inputs for the asset or Kabilty that are not basad on observable markel data {Level 3)

30 Seplamber 2013

Cerivatve linancial instruments.
Forward foreign currency contracts
Interest rata swaps
Future payments o mnority interests
Liquidty put cption

30 Seplambar 2012

Derivative Imancial instrumaents
Forward loraign currency contracts
Interast rata swaps
Futura payments o mnordy intarasts
Liquidity put oplion

23# R filation of ts in Lavel 3 linancia! instruments

Batance at 1 October 2012

Gains and losses recognised in Incoma Statement
Reclassifications

Acquisitions

Adiustmenis te initial racogniven

Seftled during the year

Batance at 30 Saptamber 2013

Batancs at 1 Oclobar 2011

Gains and lossas recognised in Incoms Siatement
Acguistions

Satiiad dusng the yaar

Balance at 30 Septethber 2012

2013 2012
£'000 £000
3,756 7,580
3423 221
1,205 1,268
g7 1024
1,325 1147
550 -
3,826 -
217 -
2432 .
83 -
1,600 —
21,380 13.260
{962) -
20,418 13,260
Lovei 1 Lowol 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000
- 722 .
- 244 -
- - {21,380)
- - (48 48¢
5 56 (55,565,
Levall Loval 2 Lavald
£'000 £'000 £000
816 .
. (373)
. - (13,260)
. {48,118)
- 443 161 378)
Financial
llabitities on
payments to
minority Ligquidity put
interasts option Total
£'000 £'000 Co00
{13,260) {48,110) {61,378)
{2,721} a71) {3.098)
3,871 . asMm
(13,362} {13,362)
2,182 . 2 182
2,116 2,118
(21,380) (48,489) (89 268}
Financial
liablfities on
paymants to
minority Liquidity put
intarasts opbon Total
£000 £'000 €000
{11373 - {11 379)
{1,502} - {1,502}
{3,459} {48,118) {51.577)
3,074 - _ 3074,
(13.3&0) {48,118) {61.378)
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24 Deferred taxation

Decetarated capital alowancas
Losses cared torward

Other short tarm timing diferances
Ney deferrad tax balance

Deferrad tnx asset

Amount recoverable within one year

Balance 81 beginning of year

Delarrad ax (debitycradit in profit and loss account
Reclassihcation and other adjustments

Exchange dfiaronces

Balance at end of year

Defarred tax IEnbility

Balance at beginmng ol year

Deterred tax crediv{deblt) m protd and koss account
Acquisition of subswdiary

Exchange diferancas

Balance at end of yaar

Hel deforred tax linbility at end of year

Total dalamed tax cradit n prolid and joss accound lor period (nole 7)

Tha mcoverabidy of tax losses Is dapendent on there bang sufficient future taxable profils, Current forecasts suppur the pariial recoverabilty of these logsas in the

013 2012
£7000 £000
480 445
118 103
{4.543) (4621}
{3,.845) (2073
2,185 1345
(367) 840
630
{36)
2402 2185
(6,258) {406)
749 {395)
(8g0) (5457
52 -
{6.347) 16 258)
{3.935) {4 073)
31 446

lorasgeable lutua  Accomdingly no defarred tax assat has been racognised in respect of lasses not expected to be recoverad in tha foreseeabla future

Factors that may alfect futurs tax charges

The Group has capital losses of £781 000 (2012 £84,000) available 1o cary lorward for olfset against luture capital gains Tha Group has unrecogrisad non trade losses of

£1,994 000 {2012 £3 531,600) for offset against luture income, subject to cartan restrictions
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25 Share capital
Allotied and cailad up
2013 Number
‘000 L'pod

Classified a3 equity’
A ordinary shares of £0 01 each 37414 374
A ordinary shares of £¢ 01 each * 877 69
8 ordtinary shares of £0 01 each 3,385 34
C qrdinary shares ol £0 01 aach 2318 23

50,005 500
Adjustmeni for employea benefit inysts
A ordmary shares of £0 01 each {358) {3
B ordnary sharos of E0 01 sach {195) {2
€ ordmary shares of £0 01 each {53) {1

49 401 494

Afiotted and called up
2012 Number
oo £000

Classtiled as equity
A ordinary shares of £0 01 each 39,051 IN
A ordinary shares of £6 01 sach * 8,877 69
B ordinary shams of £0 01 each 3,335 M
C ordmary shares of £0 01 each 1,478 15

50 801 503
Adjustmant for employea henald trusts
A ordinary shares of £0.01 each {114) (1}
B erdinary shares of €0 01 sach 3 -

50 684 508

* With oplion to converl mto loan noles

The A ordinary, B ordinary and C ordinary sharea of £0 01 each rank pari passu in all raspacls except that on the sale of iquidation of the Company the proceads shall be
divided betweaon tha shareholdars a3 foflows
= firstly. tha holders of the A onttnary shares will recelve e first £2 6004 per share

= sacondly tha holders of the A ardinary shares and the B ordinary sharea wil) each receiva the sum af £0 4295 per ghara [£2 03 - £2 £004],

= thirdly the balanca batween £3 07 and £ €0 shall be distributed between the holders of the A ordnary B ordmary and C ordinacy first issue (C1) sharas equally as though
thay wom ena clags of shar, and

= fgurthly, tha balance batwaen £3 60 gnd €4 41 shall ba distnbuied between ihe holders of tha A ordinary, B ordnary, C ordinary first issue (C1) and C ordmary second
lssue (C2) shares equally as though thay weare one class of shate and

« lastly, tha balance over and above £4 41 shall be distnbuled batween the holders of he A ordnary, B8 ordnary € ordinary firsi issue (C1), C ardinary second ssue (C2) and
C ordinary third lasue {CJ) sharos aqually as though they were one claas of share

During the yaar, 286,000 A’ ordmnary shares of £0 01 each were lssued 10 shareholders of Northedpe Forsiikkingsmagling A S as part of the consideraltion paid for the
acquisition of the company As pant of the consideration payable for the acquistion of FP Group Limded, Io&n poles ward issuad which gave the purchasar on oplion to
convert o A ordmary shares of the Company during the year The l0an note holders chasa to exarcisa this option which resufted In the Company lssulng 168 300 A ordinary
sharas 10 the shareholders of FP Group Limatad

The Company also lasued new shares during the year n relation to employes share icentive amangements for the Howden North Amaerican Proparty & Casualy Limited
("NAPAC") and Howden Property Insurance Sarvices Limited ("HPIS®) broking teams, as part of tha consideration payabie folown] e exercisa by Howden Broking Group
Limited of zal options on shares regresanting the minority interasts In NAPAC and HPIS A tolal of 184,500 A ordinary shares wers issued as part ol tha NAPAC tansaction
and a lotal of 60,200 A ordinary sharos wore issued as part of the HPIS transaction A similar exarcisa was perfarmed in the year ended 30 Saptember 2012 in mlation to
both NAPAG and HPIS whaseby 100,100 A ordinary shares were lssuad es part of the NAPAC transaction and 96,900 A ordnary shams wale issued as pan of the HPIS
trangaction

On 3 July 2012, 6,876,900 A’ ordinary shares {with option to conven inlo lcan notes) at £0 01 each were iasuad to shareholdars of Windsor Limited as part of the
considaration paid for the Windsor Group acquisiuon See nota 20 for further datafis on the conversion opbons

In Septemver 2008, e Group estatishad ha Hypserion insurance Group Employes Benefit Tryst 2008 ("Hyperion EBT} to hold shares to be used to mast tuturs kahities
ralating to the Group s share-based compensation ptans Under IFRS the EBT Is considered to be undas de facto control of the Group, 8nd hasg theralors basn consafidatad
into the Group  Ad at 30 Septambat 2013 ths Hyperon EBT hekl 322,350 {2012 68 650) A ondinary shares of €001 195 400 (2012 25 200) B orginary shares of £0 01

and 52,900 (2012 nil C erdnary shares cf £0 01 in tha Company
Upon acquisition of the Windsar group of companles, the Group also cblained cantrol of the Windsor Employes Benafit Trust ("Windsar EBT™). which has a simitar function
to that of the Hyparion EBT  As al 30 September 2013, the Windsor EBT hald 13 800 (2012 45,300) A ordinary shares of £0 01 in the Company
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25 Shere capltal (conlinued)

Change in major sharsholders and repurchass of share capital

On B July 2013, General Atlantic Hawthomn B V purchased shares representng in total 28 85% of the share capital of the Company, In a transaction involving the sale of
shares held by two of the Company’s majgy shareholders 31 Group pic (*3i"} and BP Marsh & Company Limitad ['BP Marsh'] Pdor lo the transaction 3i and BP Marsh heid
22 42% and 13 61% respectvaly in the share capital of the Company Ji sold 100% end BP Marsh soid B0% of Bwir respectve sharehaldings In the Company in the
transaction

Althe sama e, tha Company rapurchased pan of ds own share caphal through the repurchase of a lotal ol 2,856,800 A ordnary shares from 31 Group a1 £S5 20 par share
gwing en overnt value of £14,855,360 Of this total, 1,923,000 A shares vatued at £9,999,600 were fnanced from the Group's distribulable esarves while the remanmg A
933,800 sharas, vatued a1£4,855,760, were financed from a hresh share issue Stamp duty costs wase incumrad at 0 5% of the purchase prica of the shares which wera
expansad through the income statament.

The 1,522,000 A shares ropurchasad from the Group's distributable resarves ware ¢bigbile lor treatment as treasury shams The Group elkecled (o cancel these shares The
par valug of these shares was £0 01 par share, which resuited in a reduction ol £19,230 (o the Group's share captal Thea shares reacquired as a result of tha ash shara
(ssue ware not eligibla for reatment as a treasury shares and wure abso cancelled by the Geoup The nei eflect to the Group's shara capital from this tansaction was nll As
all shares repurchased ware canceled, the Group did not hold any traasuty shares at year end, span from those held by tha EBTs

Share-based compensation plans

Cunng the yaar 841,200 C3 ordinary shares ware issusd lor shara-based inconiive schames The tolal cost racognisad by the Group was £nd (2012 Eni) X

The Company contmues to oparate an exacutiva share aption schama lor exacutive directors and othar saniar employses undar which the options arignatly granted over
Ordnary shares ol £1 ezch in the Company prior to the recrganisation of the Company's share capital on 3% March 2008 ware converlad into options over A ordnary shares
of £0 01 aach in the Company This scheme is no longer an HWREC approved schema, having lost its HMRAL approval status on the reorganisalion of the Company's share
capital in 2008 The price 8} which cplions ware granted under the schema was based upon the estanalad market value of the shares al the date of grant of the oplicns In
gach cass Options were grantad on tha basis that thay would be axercisable batween 3 yaars and 10 years ahar fw dale of grant, following which they would lapse

During the year endad 30 Septamber 2012 howsver, the Remunaration Commitiea agreed on behat ol the Company to extend the final axplry date of certain options which
woukd otherwise have lapsed to & Dacember 2014 The charge for the year n respect of these optlons amounted fo £n#l lor the year ended 30 September 2013

Al shard scheme incontives are at the absolute d: tion of the Ra ton Cormmittea, with no employee having the right lo receive such a grani  Tha lair valves al
shara-based mcentves are delammingd at thek daig of grant

Outstanding share options

Al 30 Septsmber 2012 thers were 360 600 unexarcisad opbons in respact of the Company's A ordwiary shares of £0 01 aach, which were Bsued to various exacutves In tha
Group During the year there was no movemenlt in the numbear of shara options issued

An analysis of tha exercise price and the dalgs Mg share oplions may bo axorceed & $0t oul balow

Exgreisable Held at end of

Date cf grant Exgreise price from Explry date year
£ Numbar
5 Dacamber 2001 022 061272004 08122014 16 300
10 February 2003 028 11022006 08/12/2014" 25,000
14 June 2004 048 15/06/2007 0B 2/2014" 47 500
14 Dacember 2605 147 15/12/2008 $5/12/2015 25,000
19 July 2005 150 200772009 200072016 75 000
08 Decembar 2006 1.50 09/1272009 497122016 15,000
22 Ociober 2007 152 231072010 2¥162017 9,900
21 Navembar 2007 152 2211172010 220t 86,900

—J0E00

* The iinal axarcisa dales of these options have bean extanded by the Company to 6 December 2014 in gach case
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26 Other ressrves
Capitai Assat Share Cush NMlow
redemptl huat} pli Transiation hedging Minorily option Total other
ressrve reserve ragarve  EBT reserve rogarve reserve resoTvn resorvas
2013 £'000's £'000's £'000's L 000's £'000's £000 s C'oc0 e £'000 o
A5 at ¥ October 2012 - - 8562 207 {62) 4 {7,320} {5,069)
Net loreign axchange adustments - - 40 . (+,050) . {1,010}
Aepurchase of share caplak 1 ) N . .
Not movemant in gharas ha'd by Employaa
Banafil Trust - - - 832 - . 832
Movemeni in cash flow hedge - . - - - 622 522
Arlsing on acquisition and disposals - . - . . . {12 110) {12 110)
Revatluation of assats . 15 - - - - . 39
An at 30 Seplember 2013 19 39 802 1,639 {1.112) 966 119,230) (18.777)
Share
oplions Transtation Cash liow  Minority option Total ather
reserve EBT Reservo reserve hedging resarve resarve resarves
2012 £EQt0s £000's €000's £000s £000s EQDDS
Divicends paid - B B - - -
el movement In shases hald by Employes . . .
Movement in cash fiow hedge . . 444 444
Arsing] On acquisiion and disposals _ 227 - - [3.043) 12,816)
Ag at 30 September 2012 862 807 162} 444 (7 120) |5 05%)

Tha reserva for mnority oplions includes the Inltal fak value of put option fabiitles granted o minority sharehoiders and future commitments or polentlal ctibgalions to
acquire shares b subsidlaries currently held by non-controliing shareholdars Subsegquent changes in the falr vatus of the put opbion labfity are recognised b the ncome
Tha movement o tha tinoedty oplion resatva reprasents the fulure commitments (o purchase minonty intarests Tha movemant relales to the acquisition of the following

2013 2012
£000 £'000
Howden Brasil Administracho e Comatagem Ce Seguros Lids (126} 1025
Howden Employae Benefits Limited 2432 -
Northedge Forslkringsmaging A § 2087 -
FP Group Lomited 3,739 -
Howden lberia SA 1,529
Howden Insurance Brokers A B 83 -
Purchase of shares of pon-controllng sharehciders 2,386 2018
12 110 3043

27 Cash Naw adjusiments

Tha cash flows for the Group are praseniad for continuing operalions only They excfude the cash flows from discontinued operations and cash flows

Cash acquired on acquision of subsxtaries s separately shown nstead wihun net cash outflow frorh acquistions and disposa’s Insurance cash acquired on acquisition of
subsidianes s shown separately within insurence cash ganarated from oparating activities Managament considars thal this approach provides a clearer viow of the
undarying cash Bow movements

Cash fiows lor discontinued operations are separately prasentad in note 39

28 Financial risk management

Crodit risk
The Group s prncpal financial assets are bank balances and cash, rade and cther recaivables The emounts prasenied In tho statement of mancial poshion are net of

allowancas for doubtful receivables  An aBowance for impaimant is made where there la an idantifled as avanl which, based cn pravious experiance, s avidence of 8
reguction in the recoverability of cash flows
Tha Group has no significant concentiation of cradit risk, with exposure spread ovar a large number of countarmartes and customers

The crada dsk on Bquid funds Bnd derivative financial instruments ks imtad as the countarparties are the Group’s Dankars with Righ credh ratings assgnead by ntemational
credit ralng agencias
Ageing nlommation of insurance racelvables are as saf out balow

Nol More than
pant due 0=J months 3 manths Total
At 30 Septsmber 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Insurance raceivablas 16,545 20,189 5,158 45970
Nol Mo then Toml
past dua 0-3 months 3 months
Al 30 September 2012 £'000 £000 £ 000 £009

Insurance receivables 14 042 7,140 4607 25,789
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28 Fir 1 risk 2 {continued)
Liquidixy riak
(n order o maintam liquidity to ensure that sulficient funds sre gvatabla for On-gong oparations and future Sevalopments, the Group uses a mixturg of lag-1am and shor-
term dsbt finance The lolowng table delais the Group's lning contractuat y for 88 non-cierivative financial Babilitles with agraed repayment penods  The table
inciudes the pmcipal cash flows only The contractual matunty is based on the earbesi date on which tha Group may be reguired to pay
30 Saptember 2013 Lesas than 1-5 123 Total
1 year years yasrs
£000 E 000 €000 E'000
Finance legse kahlity (638) (865) - {1,503)
Cthar loans - Menorah Mivtachim Insurance Limiled - {1,162) . {1,162)
Bank borowmngs {20,823) {58,148) - (86,969)
Omar third party ksans {1,440} (20,501) - (21,941)
121901) @9 674} - {111,575)
J0 September 2012 Lass than 15 5+ Tota!
1 year years yaars
£000 €000 €000 £ 000
Fmance lgase llabﬂw {444) {615) - {1,058)
Other loans M Miviachim Ir Limited - {1.542) - {1,542)
Bank bormowings {2,737 {65,260) - 67.997)
Other third party loans _Iﬂﬁ)_%%‘l - (11,762}
2:378) 8,381) z (82,3601,

The fallowmng table delads the Group's kquiddy analysia for #ts danvative fnancal nstruments The table has been drawn up based on discountad nat cash flows on dedvative
Instrumanits Whera the amount payable of receivabla is not fixed the amouni dsciosed s the falr valua of the instrument at the balance sheet date

30 September 2013 Luss than 15 5+ Total
1 year ysars years
000 £ 0ot L'e00 £'000
Forsign exchange forward contracts 986 - - 966
Intarest rate swaps 244 - - 244
Futurs paymenis lo minority shareholdars {637) {19,781) - {20,418)
573 {19,781) - {19,208)

Interas! rate rigk

Tha Group 5 ofly axposura is on he ntamest payabls on tha Company's variable rate borrawings and receivable on Ing deposits held n the ordmary course of
buainess Overdrafls and benk borcwings bear a Noalmg ntarest rate, as a resul, the Group Is subject to a cerlain degree of cash ﬂr.m interast rate risk due to fuctuatbons in
the pravailng lgve!s of markel interest ralas The Group ks not subject to interest mle rsk in retation to the fixed rate borowngs

During the provious year the Group enterad into Interest rate swap transactions o go and lkxad interas! paymant chiigations Io pratect ong-lanm borrowings
from the risk of Increasing interast rates The Group vses swap contracls 1o mamtan a designated propartion of fixad to floatmg debt

Al 30 September 2013 there were ouistanding conlracts with a principal value of £243,000 (2012 £373,000) in favour of me Group (in favour of the HSBC and Lioyds
Banking Group n the prior yaar), all of which arg I recaive lloating/pay (ixed intarest rate swapis These amangamants hacpe 80% ol Faclity A for thrae years effactva 31
Decermnber 2012, and 100% of Facility B lor five years eftective 31 Dacambar 2012, Tha nei intarast payments or recaipt sattiements of tha swap contracts occue semr
annualy The net saftiament amounts arg drought Nio ACCouN] as an adjustman: 1o Nlerast axpenso

The net etlectve variablp int2rest rate bomowngs {| @ unhadged debl) expose the Group to interest rate nsk which wil impact future cash fliows and interas! charges

The exposure for e Group, at 30 Septamber 2013 of fnancizl assets and fmancial fabiilles ta inlarest rata risk ks shown by relerznce o

- Moatlng intarest rates (Le gving cash flow intergst rato risk} when Mo interost rate is due to be m 5ot and

= fxod nterest rates {ie glvnyg lair value interast rata risk} when the financia! instrument ks dup for repaymaent

Fixed Floating

rate rais Total
A1 30 Seplsmber 206) £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial nssats
Cash and cash equivalants - 18,601 18,801
Insurance cash - 154,653 154,653
Taotal financlzl assats - 173,454 173,454
Financial lisbllitles
Bank ovardralt . {566} {856)
Bank borrowngs - (81,569) {81,569}
Loans and loan notas from mlated parbes - {21,941) {21,941}
Finance lsasas {1,503) - (1,803}
Unhadged bank borowngs - (5,400) {5,400}
Dearivalive financial kabiites 1313} - {373}
Total financiat lisbilitios {1,876} (105 476) {111,352

Fixed Floating

ratg ralg Total
Al 30 September 2012 £000 £000 £'000
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalsnts . 23175 23,175
lnsuranca ¢ash - 113 488 113,488
Financlal Gabiites
Bark overdraft - @ (278)
Bark horrpwngs . {61 897) (81 997)
Lozns and loan notes from relatod parbes . {11,762) (11,762)
Finance leases (1.059} - (1,059)
Unhadged bank barrowings (8,000) (8,000)
Denvabve inancial Gabdites (373) - (373)
Total financial kabies (1,432) (B0 037) 81,469)

Fuiance costs are at rilas documented in note 18
- pakion b gs undar tha mubt-currency revang cred!! faclity is at a margn over LIBOR or its foreign cumency equivalent (2012 No change)

- Imarest mcaivad on cash and cash equivalents i managed to achieve a masgin cver LIBOR or its forgign curancy equivalent 2012 ng change),
Ag cash and cash squivaisnts are investad al short tenm markel rates, los fixed shorl-tarm periods and heid to maturity, they am nol signiiicantly impacted by movements in
ntgrast rates
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20 Financial risk managemant (continued)

Forelgn currancy risk

Cartain of the Group's assets, labilties, incoma and expenses ara denomnated in curranciss other than Staring The curmencies giving rise to this risk are prmarily US
Dattar, Euro and Australian Doltar Foreign exchange risk arises when recognised asssts and liabiitias are denominated in a currency that ks not the entity’s lunctional
cumencty As a rasult, movements in exchangs rates may altact the Sterfng value of thoss tems

The far values of tha Gioup s net assats, reverue and azpansas that hava US Dodar Euro end Austrafian Bollar foraign cumrency arpasure are as follows

usos Eura AUD
Al 0 September 2013 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Nal assats 18,247 9382 8,375
Revanue 43,259 19,073 15,052
Expenses (5,600) {8,775) {7 T94)

usos Euvro AUD
Al 30 Septamber 2012 £0co £'000 £'000
Nel assets 28,772 11535 674
Ravenue 18,336 24,055 10,776
Expenses {5.443) {6,135) {7,016)

The Group's poiicy is to raduce tha risk asscclated with sates denomnated in foreign curencies by using forward curtancy salkes contracts laking into account any forecast
forgign currency cash flows

Foreign currency sonollivity
Tha Ialiowing table detalls the sensitvity of the Group s equity 1o 8 10% increase and dacressa in Sterting agamst US Doflar, Euro and Austratian Dotlar

uso s Euro AUD
At 10 September 2013 L£'0C0 £'000 £'006
Nal assats 1,825 838 537
Ravenus 4326 1,907 1,585
Expenses {560) @) (779)

uso s Eurn AUD
At 30 Septambar 2012 £000 £700 £000
Nat assats 2ar? 1,160 67
Agvenue 1.8 2,406 1078
Expenses {544) (813} (702}

29 Contingent lizbitities

At 30 September 2013 the Group had contngeni Eabiitas in respect of guarantaes and mdemnlitias entered into as part of tha ordnary course of tha Group's business No
matarial lossaes are kely 10 arise from such contingent kabdhties and theralore no provision hes been recorded

The Group is involved trom tme to lme in the ordmnary course of its busnass in certain clams and legal proceedings ralated o tha Graup's oparations, including employmaent
relaled matiers In the opinion of managament, Habilittes i any, arismg rom these clalms and proceadings will nat have a material adversa affact an the Group's
consolidated firiancial position or the rasults of s oparnations

The Group anatyses s Rigation exposure based on avalabe nformation, inchuding extamal lenal consultabon where appropriate, 1o assess 45 potential &abildy Agxde from

30 Operoting lense commitments
At 30 Septembar 2013 the Group had commitmants under non-canceftable operating lopsas as 581 out bakew
Land and Bulldings Other
2013 2012 2012 2012
£ 000 £ 000 £:000 £1000
Not later than one year 2,655 2,765 258 292
Later than one year and nod later than five years 7.980 7.7 411 5315
After (ve yoars 1,104 2693 - -
11,739 13 169 730 BZ7

During 2012 the Group enterad inlo 8 new operalng lease agraement upan tha relocation of the heed office to Eastcheap Streat m London The kase commenced on 31
January 2012 tor a period of 11 years The agreement inchedes an incentive in the form of a 30 month rent frea paricd Upon acquisition of the Windsor Group in 2012, the
Group also acquirsd several oparaiing leases In ratation o varlous Windsor atfices, including Fenchurch Streat in London This leasa commenced on 1 June 2010 and has a
15 ynar tarm  with a rent free period which ended on 30 November 2011

31 Definad conuibution pension schemes

The Group operatas a number of definad contribution pension schemas The assats of tha achama are haid separataly irom those of the Group in an mdapendently
administarad fund Tha pension cost charge represants contributions payatia by the Group to the fund end omounied fo £2.453,000 (2012 £2,802,008) Contributions
outstanding at the end ol the yeer amounted to £325,000 (2012 £311,000)
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32 Defined benalit penslon scheme

The Group operatas a dalined benefit pension scheme the Windsor Retirement Banefits Schema No 2 The assets of the schame are held in @ sepamioe trustoe
admmistared fund indapendont of the Company's finances

Actuarial gains and losses are racognised in full in the period In which they occur  As permiitad by [AS 19, actuarial gains and losses are recognised utsida profd of koss 83
other comprahensive incoma  The amount recogrised in the statemant of financial postiion regresents tha lair value of the scheme assels reduced by the present valua of
the dafined beneit obigation

An actuarial valuation was parfonmed as at 30 September 2013 by an ndependeni qualifiad actuary in sccordance with IAS19  As required by 1AS 19, the value of the
dafinad benafd obigation has been measured usng the projected unit cradd method and both the assets and Eabiities include the vaiue of thase pensions in payment which

are sacured with insured annuitles

The expecied lata of ratum on assets lor the yea! ended 30 Seplember 2013 was 4 3% pa (2012 4 7% pa) This rate is darved by taking the weighted avarage of tha long-
tanm expected rate of retum on eoch of the assat classas that the scheme was invested m a1 30 September 2013

No contrbutions have been paid by the Company in the perked to 30 Septembar 2013 and none are expectad in 2014 There are no longar any active mambers b the
schama

“The loBowing tabie sals out the key 1AS19 assumptions used lor the scheme

2013 2012
Asaumptions £a60 £o00
Prica inflation 31.3% pa 27%pa
Discount rate 4 4% pa 423%pa
Pension ncreasas in payment (LPI) 3.0%ps 4 0% pa

On tha basts of the assumptions used lor i'e expectancy, a male person ags 65 a! tha accountny dats would be expacied to ive e further 22 6 years (2012 22 5years) A
mals parson who atiains age 65 in 20 years trma bs expected fo live a lurther 24 5 years (2012 24 4 years)

Tha amount included In the statement of financial postion arising trom the Company's obligalions in respecl of the achema is as fclows

2013 2012

£°000 £000
Falr vakie of scheme assals FX:73] 2,697
Prasent value of scheme flabiltias {2,550} (2,628)
Surplus LF1] (L]
Amount not recognised due to aaset imit {121) (89)
Batance sheet asset f (babiity) - .
Tha amounis racognisad in profit end lesa aio as follows

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Employer's part of current service cast ] 4)
Intaras cost {110) 87}
Expeciad ratum on schemi assots 114 92
Total expensal{cradd) incluced in proft and loss {2) 1
The cument allocation of the schemae's assals Is as lollows

2013 2012
Equities 16% 14%
Bonds 1% 15%
Insurad pansioner policies/ather 87% T

100% 100%

None of the assets of the cheme ara dvactly investad in the Company's own financlal instruments or in any property eccupled by tha Company

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit cbiigation are as lolows
Year to 8 monhs 1o

30092013 30092012

£'000 £000
Opening definad benafit obligation 2,828 2,532
Employer'a pan of current service cost 6 4
Interest cost 110 87
Contribytions from schemea members -
Actuanat (gain) / loss (54) "
Benefits paid {120) _ (1086}
Cilosing dalinad benefil obligation 2,850 2628

Changas in the fak valse of the Scheme assels are as lofiows
Yoar to 9 months to

30/09/2012 30/09/2013

£ 000 £ 000
Opening lai vatue of the Schems assais 7.697 2627
Expactad roturh on Schemns assels 114 g2
Actuaria) gain / {loss) - B4
Beneflts paid to Schemsa mambars {140} {108}
Closing {ak value of Schems assets 2,671 2897

The changes in the present vatue ol the detnad banalit abligations have been takan from the movemeni since the provicus valualion

”
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32 Defined benellt scheme (continued)

The actual retum ¢n the Scheme s assels over the year ended 30 Septernber 2013 was & gain of £114,000 {nine months lo 30 September 2012 a gain of £176,000)

The amount reccgnised autside profil and loss in other camprahensiva income for the year ended 30 September 2013 Is €0l (nine monhs {0 30 September 2012 End)

inchuging the effect of the asset it

The cumulatve amount racognisad outside profit and loss a1 30 September 2013 axcluding the effect of the assat kmil is a ioss of £154,600 (2012 a loss of £208,000)

Fair vatue of scheme sssats
Present value of dalined benalti oblgation
Surplus / (defict)

Experience adiustmants on schams assels

Amount of gain / (lo3s)

Percantage ol scheme assels

Expariance adiusiments on Scheme fabiles

Amouni ol gain / (loss)

Parcantage of the present value of the schame Eabiklics

33 Relsted party iransactions

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,671 2697 2.627 2 444 2419
{2,850) (2.828) {2.532) £2.306) {2 288)
121 [ 85 138 131
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£ 000 £'000 E'G00 £000 £000
. 84 191 3 222
0% 3% 7% 1% 9%
74 {40) (1) . .
% 2% 2% 0% 0%

The Group considers parties 1o be related i one party has the ability to control the other party or exarcise significant mfluence over the other party in making (mancal or
As at tha balance sheet date, the onty amounts due (to}from related partes were shargholder loans and loan notes

The Group had the iclowing transactions with related parties dunng the year

IT and othar axpansas paid to Fami Prermum Limied
Fees paidto B P Marsh & Company Limited

Intgres! paldipayabie to B P Marsh & Company Limiled
Interas! pand to Murolo Investmants SL

Interest pald to Inversionas Muroca SL

Interast pald to 3 Group pic and assoclated undertakngs
Interas! pakt to Marsh Christian Trust

Fess paid to 3| Group pic and associated undenakings
Faas pald to other directors

Intarast paid on loan notes from Hendricks Gmbh sharehc'car
Intarest pakt on loan noteg from FP Marine sharehoiders
Intarast paid on loan notes

Amounts recelvable and payable s the end of the year

B P Marsh & Company Limied lees payablo

3! Group pk and associalad undenakings

L Mulcz Rojas directars fens payabie

Ganeral Attantic Hawthom B V' feas payable

Amounts due om J P da Blocq van Kullelsr®

Amounts included within other short-term debtors and creditora

Loan jrom B P Marsh & Company Limited

Loan from Murolo Investments 5L

Loan from (nversiones Muroca SL

Amounts included In loans from relatad partisa (note 19)

Loan notes from 3 Group pic {ing rolled interast)

Loan riotas from B P Marsh & Company Limitad

Loan noias {rom Marsh Christian Trus!

Loan noles from Hendricks

Loan notas trom FP Marine shareholders

Loan notas

Amounts included in loan notes lrom relstad parties (nots 19)

Major sharsholdar wntil 8 .July 2013
Major sharehalder untl 8 July 20113
Major sharaholdar

Major sharahaolder

Mator shaceholder until 8 July 2013
Ma|or shareholder

Major shareholder unti 8 July 2013
Drrectars

Non-contrafing shareholdar of subsidiary
MNon-controling sharaholder of subskiiary

Shareholdors

Major sharehoidar unts 8 July 2013
Major sharehcider untit 8 July 2013
Director

Major sharehoider from 8 July 2013
Chairman

Major snarahokder until 8 July 2013
Major shareholdar
Major shareholder

Malor sharshalder untd 8 Juty 2013
Major shareholder unt 8 Juty 2013
Major sharehoidor

Nen-controfing sharshcider cf subsidiary
Non-controling shareholder of subsidiary

Sharghalders

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
ISS; (53;
(337) (245)
(18) (18}
(8) (12)
oo
{40) (53)
(143)
(27)
(198) .
{ae1) (110}
{1,754} (847}
- (12)
(545 (53)
(13) .
74 [
3) {56)
(8,037) (1,937)
(125) {250}
{58) (115}
(6,220) {2 302)
- (2,723}
- {957
n{;g:; (718
(7.552) :
{5,125} i5,125)
(17,198} {9 523)

During the yoar, N Gnowp pic and assoclated undertakings (*37) sold 100% of their inlerest n the Group resylting m a shargholdng of nil @l year end Raoler to nole 25 for
further detall As part of this transaction General Atlantc Hawthom B V acquired a 28.85% cwnership of the Company’s issued shares, the bigest shareholdng in the

Group

B P Marsh & Company Limtad ("B P Marsh”) 8 wholly ownad subsigiary of B P Marsh & Parthers pic , owned 2 B1% of the Company & issusd shares al ha end of the year
"Thae balance dus Irom JP de Blocq van Kufleler at 30 Septamber 2013 was repald i fufl on 4 Movember 2013
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34 Busineza combinatiana

+ ) Bragh ¢in & Canrstagem Ds Seguros Lide

Cn 28 September 2012, Hyperion acquired 51% ¢f Howden: Brasi Admnistragio @ Conetagem De Seguros Lida (‘Consel) a Braziian based indepenseni retail and
wholasale broker that specialises in the construction industry, a kay growth sector in e tarmitory The acquisition is in ne with the Group's stralegy 16 ncrease 4s
geographical presence, partictsarly in the emargng markot of Latin America

As the acquisition occusrad on tha final day of the pravious financial year tha prior year accounts dhsclosura did not include any subsaguent complahon scjustments made {0
the talr vatus of daferred consicaration and the recognised amounts of ibentifiabla assats The restated amgunts below raprasent the linal considaration paxt and net assets
acquirad.

Snca acquisition, Conset has contributed revenue of £1,964,000 and an £BITDA of £68,000 to the Group

Purchass cansideration £'000
Cash pad 810
Fair valus of delarred consideration 1,706
2,516
Racognised amaunts of identillable assets acquired and Eabliites assumed
Proparty, ptani and equipmsnt 52
Identifabi¢ intangible assety 678
Trade and other receivatios 253
Cash and cash equivatents 166
Trade and other payables {57)
Income 1ax payable — (27
1,165
Non-contrafing interest (571)
Net assets acquired 594
Goodwil 1,922

Arquisibon-retatad costs of £80,000 were incurred dunng tha year An additional £79,000 was included withe acquisition costs in the consolidatad mcomae statement for the
yaar ended 30 September 2012
Nona of the goodwil recognised is expacted {o be deductible for ncome tax purposes

FP Group Limited and controlied entitiea

Cn 5 February 2013, the Group completed the acguisiiion of 55% of FP Group Limited and contrallad enties ("FP Marine®), through the newly incorporated company
Hyperion Marine Hoidings Limliad FP Marine is a highly dynamic, fast growth business that has been successful n carving cul a significant niche position in the Aslan
marine market, with officas in Hong Kong Tawan China Australla and London

The acquisition contrbuled ravenus of £6 Bm and an EBITDA of £84,000 1o tha Group smea its acquisilon

£'000

Purchasae consdaration
Cash pakd 2,061
Falr valua of loan notes issued 8,005
Falr valug of dafarred consideration 1,408
Put and ca!! oplion (lair value at acquisition) Nn
Prce adjustment mechanism |2 332)
Total purchaoe consideration 9,363
Recognised amounts of identihalile assers acquwed and babilbes assumed
Property plard and equipmant 1,087
identifiabla intangble asssts 3080
Invastinent n associale 63
Trade and other recelvables 1210
Cash and cash aguivalents 632
Financlal Kabifties (1.421)
Trads and other payables 921}
Corporation taxation (67)
Delatred taxation 36
Ne1nsurance balances 3,602
Falr value adjustmaents to assats and kabiblies actuired (1.258)

6,005
Non-controting niarast (2,702}
Net assots acquired ——d303
Goodwil 6,060

None of the goodwil recognisad 's expectad (0 be daductble for income tax purposes

Acquisdion relatad costs of £759,000 were incured curing the yaar These ara included within acquisttion costs in the consofidated ncome statement for the year ended

30 Saptember 2013

Tha Group has ye! to fnafisa its measuremant of the lalr value of essets and labdilles acquired, the abon joned numbers ore provisional and wilt be fnalised withn the
next rapodng perod
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34 Businass binations { { )

Northadge Forsilringemeyiing AS
The Group acquired §1% Northedge Forsikringsmegling AS ("Northedge®) on 24 September 2013, an insurance brokerage based in Norway The business operatas out of
Oso and the team are spacialists in Property and Casuatty, and Employee Benofits

As the Group devalops fts dstrbution across Europe the astablishment of a pan-Nordic broking platiorm from which to serve chents regronally has always been a major
objective Nerthadge joins the Group's existing oparations in Finland and Sweden, giving raal credibility to this objectve

Purchass consdaralen 000
Cash pald 17
Shara caphal issued 1449
2,000
Recognised amounts of klenttlable assats acqulred and liabtiles assumed
Property, plant and equigmsnt 3
|dentiiable ntangbla assels 4
Trade and other recelvables 17
Cash and cash squivatents a9
Trade and other payables 72)
Camporation taxation (25)
107
Goodwill 1913

None of the goodwil recogmsed is expected to be deductble for ncome tax puposes

Acquisiion related costs of £54,000 wera hcwrred gunng the year Thasa are inctuded within acquisition costs in the consolidaled income siatement lor the year ended
39 Septamber 2013

The Group has yet to finafise s measurement of the lair value of assals and Babllitias acquired, the abovamentionad numbaers are pravisional and will ba finafisad withn the
next reportng period

Howden Employes Benefits Limitad

During the {mancia! year andad 30 September 2013 the Hyparion Group, through its subsidiary Howden Brokng Group Limded, acquired 0% ol the shara capial in Howden
Employee Benefits Linited, a Cardiff based insurance brokarage

Purchase considaration £'800
Cash paid 135
135
Racognisad amounts of idantfiable assets acquired and liabities assumed
Proparty plant ang aqupment a
Trade and other receivables 13
Cash and cash equivaients 1
Trada and cihar payables 1115)
{93)
Goodwil ——— 228

None of the goodwil recognised ts expected to be deductible for ncome tax purposes

Acquisdion-related costs of £25,000 weare incurred during the year Thase are included within acquisttion costs in the consolxiatad income statemant for the yaar ended 30
Saplamber 2013

The Group has yat to inalise 1s measuremeant of the falr va‘ue of assats and liablities acqukad the abovementioned numbars are pravisional and will be finalsed wittun the
naxt raporing peariod

35 Business combinations afler the batance sheet dale
Subsequent o the batance shael dats, the Group made the foliowing material acquisition

Primary Group, Inc

On 25 Cctober 2013, the Group acquired a majority interast in Pnmacy Group Inc ("FGI7) a kading Property and Casuaity Program Manager headquartered n Flonda
USA, through Its sutsidiary DUAL Intamational Limited PGl controls premiumns approaching USD $200m and is ons al he largost independent underwribng agencies in the
Unfted Statas

PGI started operations just ien ysars ago and has since enjoyed focusad growth and prafitahility basad on quakty underwriting in partnership with mafor US and intamational
nsurars it has underwritng offices in Calfoma Florida, Georgla Maryland, New Jlarsey and New York. The business consists of specially programmas 1or both groperty
and casuabhy classes which am writtan on an admatad and excasa and surpius nes basils

The net assals of tha company are astmatad to amount to approximataly ©4.2m and the Group has paid £45 7m lor its 90% shars in the Group  Tha alommentionad
amounis ara provisiona! and aro subject to change loliowing Managements rewaw and maasurement theraol

Bar-Ziv Ravid taaurance Agency Limitad

On 4 November 2013, and subject lo regulatory approval tha Group ecquired a majority intesest in TalAviv based nsurance broker, Bar-Zv Ravid Insurance Agancy Limiled
("Bar 2v°) Established in 1876, Bar-2iv Ravid Insurance Agency Ltd provides a number of specialist insurance servicea and products, including «ts leading Profassional
The Group acquired the shareholdng of Bar Zw for £0 85m and have yet lo perform a measurement of the net entifiable assets of the company
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36 Uitimate controlling party
The group had no controfing sharehoider at 30 September 2013, or at 30 Saptember 2012

37 Capltal commitmenta
Tha Group has capital commitments in relation to the acqulstion of minority shareholdngs, jurther inlormation s in nota 23¢ The Group had no other captal commimenta
as at 30 September 2013

38 Principal subsidiary and sasaciated compani

The followng were the pnncpal subsidary and assocksle enttias et 30 Saptenber 2013 Unless otharwise shown, tha capilal of sach company Is wholy-owned, s in
ordnary sharas and the prncipal country of cperation Is the country ol incorporation

Nama ol company 9% ownad _ Natume ol business

DUAL Austraila Ply Limhied Austraia 100 nsurance ynderwriing agency
FP Marng Risks Austrafia Pty Limited Austrafia 51 Insyrance broking

Howden inaurance Brokers (Bermuda) Limitad Bemude 100 Insurance broking

rg:aen Brasil Administraclo @ Complagem De Seguros Brazil 51 insurance roking

Howden Cometora de Ressegunos Lida Brazi 100 Insurance broking

FP Group Limited BV) 51 Intarmed:ate hoiding company
FP Intemational Holdings Lienited = :AY] 43 Insurance broking

Canadizn Resources insurance Solutions Inc Canada 100 Insurance broking

Asasorias 8 Inversiones Howdun - Patagonia S A Chile 25 Insurance brokng

H «

P o LOTIEOMRS 08 SEQUIOS SOCCAT® e 25  Insurance broking

Howden thsurance Brokers LLC*** Ouval 35 Insurance broking

Howden thsurance Brokers Oy Faland 93 Insurance broking

DUAL Deutschiand GmbH Gemany 4 [1] Insurance underwritng agency
Hendricks & Co GmbH DAQ Insurance Agency Gemany 75 Insurance broking

Accefto Insuranca Management Limited =~ Hong Keng 49 Insurance broking

DUAL Underwritng Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kang a0 Insurance undeniling agency
FP Maring Risks Limitad Hong Kang 59 Insuranca broking

FP Reinsurance Brokers Limbted Hong Kong 51 Insurance broking

HBG Asta Holdngs Limited Hong Kong 75 Intermediate hoidng company
Howdan Insurance Brokers {HK) Limited ** Hong Keng L Insurance broking

Universal Healthcare Managemant Limited” * Heng Kong 49 Insurance broking

Howdan Insurance Brokers Indla Private Limted*** Incka 2% Insurance broking

PT Howden Insuranca Brokars Indonesia Indonasta 8o Insuranca broking

mzn General and Marina Insurance Brokars (2011) Israet 100 Insurance broking

Howden Insurance Brokers (2002) Limited Israel 160 Insurance broking
rm:;(ggg;it:lnu::ndnmm»rs Ganeral Insurance israel 100 Insurance broking

DUAL Itala S p.A Itay 90 Insurance underwriing egency
Hyperion Deveiopmem Sarl™* Luxembourg 100 Management services
Hyperien Finance S.ar i Luxembourg 100 Managament services

HIG Risk Managemeni Services Son Bhd Malaysia 75 Insurance broking

Howden RAisk Management Consultants Sdn Bhd Malaysia 75 Insuranta broking

Kinabaly Uitramar Ageacy Sdn Bhd Malaysia 78 insuranca broking

HBG (Mauritius) LimAed Mauritius 100 tntermediate holding company
Howden {Mauritius) Limited Mauribus 100 intermediate holding company
Charterama B v Netherands 38 ingurance broking

Howdan Insurance Brokers Netherands 8 v | Netherlands 76 tnsurance broking

DUAL New Zealand Limited New Zealand 75 insurance undarwriting agency
Northedge Forsikringsmaging A S Norway 51 Insurance broking

Accette Life and Accident Insurance Brokers Inc Philgpines 75 Insurance broking

Howden Insurance & Ransurance Brokers (Phit ), Inc Philppres 75 Insurance broking

Uttramar Reinsurance Brokers, Inc Philppines 75 Insuranca broking

Dual Speciakty Underwriters fnc Puerto Rico 100 Insurance underwring agency
DUAL Underwiting Agancy {Singapore) Pte Limbed Sngapore 100 Insurance underwriing agency
HBG Hokings (Singapors) Pta Limitad Smngapcie 75 Intarmediate holding company
Howdan Asla Pla Limited Singapera 100 insuranca broking

Howden Insurange Brokers (5) Pla Limitad Singapors Fi-] Ingurance broking

DUAL Ibérica Rlasgos Profasionales 5.A. Spain 100 Insurance undarwritng agency
Howdan Ibetia SA Spain ;1] Insurance broking

Howdan Insurance Brokers AB Sweden 85 Insurance broking

Howden Insurance Brokers (Thailand) Limited = Thatand 37 Insyrance brokng

Threa Wisa Boys Lid** Thadand a7 Intermedlate hokding company
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38 Principsl subsidiary and {atad companies (continued)

Nams of company % owned _Nalurg of busness

Howdan Sigorta Brokeriigl Anonim Slrkat] Turkay 51 Insurance broking

Anthony K Falcon Limied UK 100 Insurance broking

BGH Risk Sotutions Limited UK 100 Insurance braking

Borough Run-Off Sarvices Lenited UK 100 nsurance broking

Chnical Trals (nsurance Services Limitad UK 55 Insurance broking

Condor Profassional indemnity Limitsd” UK 100 Insurance broking

DCRA (FI) Limtted UK 83 Insurance underwriting service providar
DCR Holdngs Limtted* UK 100 Intarmed|ate holding comgany
DUAL Assal Underwriting Limited UK 20 Insurance yndarwriing agency
DUAL Comporato Riska Limtad UK 100 Insurance underwning agency
DUAL Intsmational Limbed* vK 100 Intarmediate holding company
DUAL Intemational Undarwritmg Limited UK 100 Insurance underwriing agency
DUAL Overseas Investments Limitad’ UK 100 Intermadiate holding company
DUAL Speclaity Risks Limited UK 100 Insurance undarwriting agancy
Footbab League & P F A Administration Limieg” UK 100 Insurancs tiroking

FP Marine Atsks (UK) Limited UK £1 Insurance broking

Global Services 1999 Limted” uK 100 Intarmadiate hokdng company
HIG Sarvices Limited** UK 100 Management services
Howden (NA2) Limited UK 51 Insurance broking

Howden Broking Group Limited™ UK 100 inigrmediate holdng company
Howden Employes Benalits Limited™ UK 60 Management services
Howden Enargy Limiied UK 100 Insurance brokng

Howden insyrance Brokers Limited UK 100 Insurance brolung

Howden Medical Insurance Services Limitad © UK 100 Manapement services
Howden North American Property & Casually Limited UK 100 Insurance broking

Howden Proparty Insurance Servicas Limited UK ] thsumance broking

Hypearion Marine Holdings LimRed" UK B3 Intermadiate holding company
J K Buckenhgm Limitgg UK 190 Insuanca brokmg

Landsr Eberll Shorter {Aviation} Limiled™ UK 100 insurance brokng

Ostrakon Capital (2) Limheg® UK 100 insurance broking

Ostrokan Secunles Limitad" UK 100 Insurance brokng

Risk Assessmant Through Evaluation Limited* UK 100 Insurance brokng

Spa Underwriting Services Select Limitad UK a0 teurance Diching

Tamaais DUAL Limited UK 65 Insurance undarwniing agency
Winasor insurance Brokers {UK) Limiaa UK 100 insurance broking

Windsor insurance Brokers Limitad UK 100 Insurance broking

Windsor Limted® UK 100 Intermeciate holding company
Windsor Partners Limited WK 0o Ingyrancs broking

Windsor Partners LLP* LUK 100 insyrance broking

Winasor Profassional Indemnity Limited UK 100 insurance broking

Wndsor Properties Limiteg® UK 100 insurance broking

wndsor Services Limted* UK 99 Insuranca broking

Wndser Trustees Limited* UK 100 tnsurance broking

Howdaen Uniguay Comedores de Reaseguros 5.A Uruguay 100 tnsurance broking

Hawtdan Insurance LLC usa 100 Insurance broking

Howdan Insurance Servicas, Inc UsA 100 Ingurance broking

Howden Speciafty Underwriing LLC USA 15 Insurance underwriing agency
VK Underwritars LLC usa 100 Insurance underwTting rgency

* Subsidiangs that are exempl bom audi! by vitue ¢f section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

** Held directly by Hyperon insurance Group Limtad

== Although legal ownership ks tess than 50%, financial resufts are 100% consoddatad for the purposes of these fnancial stataments, as the Group has effectve control oves
thesa entiles
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39 O} 11 d op 1.

Howden nsurance Brokears tnc
On 12 April 2013 the Company sold its 100% iwestment in the ordinary shate capital of Howden Insurance Brokers Ing for cash considaraton of £77,.0600

The resulls of the discontmued operations, which have been includad in the consnlidalad income stalement, ware as fofows

2013 2012

£000 5000
Fees and commissions 13 593
Other operating incoma 4 1
Other optrating costs (259) (406)
Depreciation ampr and imp. t of non-ft 1al assats {1) (6)
Oparating prol 57 92
Profk belore tax 57 92
Aftrbutabls tax axpense - (17}
Ne1 prefit attibutatie to discontnued operabons 57 75

As pan of the ransaction, Howdan (nsurance Brokers Inc transtarred a book ol business o anothar subskdary, Howden Insurance Sawvices Inc The book of business was

transferrad at a net asset vatue of £ni)

A tatal loss on sale of £287,600 srose on the disposal of Howdan Insurance Brokers Inc, beng the proceads of dsposal less the camyng amoutil of the subsidiary's net
assals and atrbutable goodwil es well as a loss incurred ioliowing the transfar of tha book of busingss &t 8 zaro net assat value The goodwill of Howden (nsurance Brokers

In¢ was impairad in the prigr year by £1,196,000, leaving the resuliing goodwit balance as nd at ha enda of 30 Septomber 2012

39 Discontinued operations (continued)
Tha nat assets ol Howden tnsurance Brokers Inc at the dale ol disposal ate as lollows

Property, plant and equipmanit
Insurance balances

Own cash balances

Delened tax asset

Othar crediors

Nal assats

Loss on disposal
Total considarabon

Mei cash nflow arising on disposal
Considerabon racalved in cash and cash equivaiants
Less cash and cash equivalents disposed of

CFC Underwriting Iimited
On {9 June 2012, the Company sold ts 59 5% invesimant in the ardnary share capttal of CFC Undarwritng Limsted for cash consideration of £20,810,800
The resudls ol the discontinuad opsrationa which have been included in the consolidated ncomeo statement lor the prior year, wera as (olows

Fees and commissions

QOther openating incoma

Other aperaling cosis

Depracation, amoriisation and impaimant ¢f non-financkal assats
Oparatng profi

Finance income

Finance costs

Prolt befors tax

Atributable tax axpensa

Profit aftsr tax

Profit on dspesal of discontnued operationg

Net profa atnbutabie to discontinued opemations

2013
£ 000
8
n7
70

2

{31)
K1)

(287}
77
_— 9

2012
£'000
6,542

a
(4.52M)
&
1938
15

1,953

(448)
1,505

17,123

18,528

Dunng Me yoar anded 30 Sepiamber 2012 CFC Underwriting contributed £387,000 to tha Group's nel oparating cash flows, paid £156 000 in reapact of invasing aclvitiea

end paxi £nit in respact of financing activities

A profit of £17 1m arose in 2012 on tha disposat of CFC Undgnwritng Limkted, beng tha procaeds of dispasal lass e camyng amouni of the subsdiiary's net assets and

The major classas of assots and kabities comprising fie aperations soid are as tollows

Proparty.plant and equipment
Othar non-cumant assels
Total non-current sssats

Trade and other recalvables
Own cash

insurance cash

Insurance raceivables
intarcompany recevables
Tolal assets soid

Trada and other payables

Tax Nabiities

Insurarice payablas

Tolal Liabilties essoclated with assals sold

Nal assets as at 19 June 2012

2012
£000
50

]
59

2,886
1,815
4,697
6,747

1,013
17,497

(1.202)

(409)
59

(11570)

59327




Hyperion Insurence Group Limited
40 Events ofter the balance sheet dote

©On 17 Cctober 2013, the Group through certain of ks wholly-awned subsiiaries ssued $250 million of Senior Secured Term Loans with J P Morgan Umited, HSBC
Securites (USA) Inc and Loyds Sacunties (USA) Inc as Joint Lead Arrangers The Term Loans bear mterost payabla quarterly ol a vartabta interest rate besed on atther
LIBOR ov a base rate plus, in oither case, an applicable mangin

Tho applicabte margm lor LIBOR Tem Loans is 4 75% with g LIBOR ficor of 1 00%  In lerms of scheduled repayment, the Term Loans am repayabie in aqual quarierly
instatments aggregating $2 5 milion in each loan year with the rematning balance cug a1 inal maturity on 17 Qctobar 2015 Concurrant with the [ssuance of the Term Loans,
the Group also reached agreemant with J P Morgan Europe Limitad, HSBC Bank pic and Lioyds Bank pic to provide £25 million of Revolving Cradt Facities maturing on
17 Ocwober 2018 The agplicable margn far LIBOR borrowings of Ravoiving Loans is 4 25% with a LIBOR {loor of 1 0%

The Term Loans and Revolving Loans ane securad by cross-guaraniess and dsbantures over the Company and over 8 nunber of the subsidanes of the Group

Net pocesds from the suance of the Term Loans were applisd, inter alla, to the rapayment n full of the Company’s sutstandng bormowings under B8 existing Senior Term
ang Multicurrency Ravoivmg Credr Facities Agreemant dated 31 May 2012

Tha Group concluded the acquisition of two companias alter the dale of this repor, Primary Group Inc Bnd Bar Zw Aavid tnsurance Agency Lid  Detads of matertal
busnass combinations siter the date of this report can be found In Note 35




Hyperion insurance Group Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

We have audited the parenl pany finanda) stat ts of Hyperion insurence Group Limitad for the year ended 30 Seplember 2013 which comprise the Parent

Company Balance Sheet and the mizted notes 110 12 The Anancial reporting fremework thal has been apphed in thelr preparabon ts applicable low and Uniled Kingdom
Accouniing Standands {Unlied Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting Practice)

This report is mada sclaly ta the company 8 members, es a body, in sccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the Compeniss Act 2006 Our oudit wark has bean undertaken
20 that we might state to the company’s members those matiers wo are required to state fo them in an audlior's repert and Jor RO other purpose. To the fulles! axtent

permmitied by taw, we da not accapt of assume responsibidy to anyone other than the pany and the pany's a3 bedy for our audt work for this report, or
tor the opinions we have formed

Raspectiva respansibitiiies of directors and auditor

As axplainad more fully In the Dirctors Responsibilves Statament, the directors are respansibie for tha propambon of tha parent company fnancial statements and tor
balng salished that they give a trua and fair view Our responsibility is to audit and express an apinion on the parent company financial statements in accordance with
appicable law snd Intamatronal Standards on Audling (UK and freland) Those stendards require us ta comply with the Auditng Practess Board s Ethicat Standards for
Audton

Scope of tha sudit of the financial statornents

An osudit involves obtaining evidence aboul the amounis and disclogures in the financial stziements sufficlent 1o give ransonable assurancs hat tha financlal stataments are
froe from material mbstatamant, whather caused by fraud or error  This includes an assessment of whethar the aecaunting palcias are sppropriate to the parent company's
tircumstances andé have beon consistenly oppied and adequately discosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates mode by the direcions, end the overall
presentation of the financial sialaments [ agdton we read sl the financial and non-Snandal information in the annual raport ta idantily malerialinconsisiencies with the
audied financis! statements and (o idantify sny sformation thol s apparently materizfly incomect basad on, or materally incengisien] wath, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of perfomning the audd If we becoma mware of any apparsent matedat missiatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

Op ot ata
In aur opinlon the parent company Enancial stalemonts

- giva a true and falr view of the siate of the parent company e affars 13 at 30 Septamber 2013

- have been propery prepaned in accordance with Untled Hingdom Ganenally Accapted Accounting Practice and
- have been prepared in ) with the requé ts of the Companias Act 2008

Opinion on other matter prescribad by the Companies Act 2008
In ot apinion tha information given in the Strategic Report snd the Drectara’ Report for the financial year for which the financlal statemants ars prapared is consistent with
the parent company financizl staiements

Matiom on which wa are required to report by excaption
We hova nothing to raport In respect of ihe following mallers where the Companies Acl 2006 requires us lo report to you i, in our opinien

- 3 ac g records have not beon kept by the paren company o returns adequats for cur audt have not been recetvad from branches nol visiled by us or
- the parent company financis! statements are nol in agreement with the aceounting records and retums or
- cartain dsclosures of drecinrs’ remunaration spectfied by law zre nat made, of

« we hava not recelved afl the information end explanations we require for cur audil

Other matier
have reported sepaml up finandal siatements of Hyperion Insurance Group Limited for the year ended 30 Seplember 2013

I -
4
Av. o <

David Rugh {Semror Staluicry Audltor)
for and on behalf of Dalolite LLP
Chanered Accountant and Stalutory Audior
London, Linted Kingdom
I8 December 23




Hypanon Insurance Group Lamuted

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Flxed assnts
Investmants in subsitary undertalungs

Current assots

Deblor dus withun gne yoar

Debiors due aker more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Cruditors
Amounts faling dug withun ong yoar

Nal cument assata
Total aasats loss cumrant Habilitiss

Cruditors
Amounts lfakng dua after mora than ong yoar
HNot asseta

Capital and roserves
Callad up sharo capital
Sharo premaum account
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Sharehalders’ furds

The fina statginanis werg approved by the Board of Drectors and authorised for msuo

-~
o
D P Howdan E R M Fady
Chef Executve Finance diretter )
Company Numbar 2937398

The roles on pages 49 10 51 icem an ntegral part of these financial stalements

Notas

LU

10
10
10

2013 2012
£000 £000
21,972 21,860
58,360 60873
102,474 76 006
7 408
160,641 T30 285
{32,302) (7,059)
128,539 132 226
150,512 154 0B
(83 697) (74 131)
50,816 70,958
500 509
62,053 6D 612
364 364
8898 18 470

N T 1 1T R 11

-9
l& Dotembar 2013 Thay were signod on tis bohall by




Hyparlon Insyrance Group Limited

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 Saptamber 2013

1 Accounting policles
The principal accounting policies adopted in the proparation of these fmancial statements are set out below These were applled Ic tams consxtarad material 1o the financial

stalaments in both the curent and prior year

(a) Basis of preparaticn
The Board has dackisd hat the continved use of UK GAAP at the Company keval is a more sppropriate method ol accounting rather than the appication of IFRS

Tha financial statements have besn prepared under the hislarieal cost convention and tn accondance with applicatls UK accounting standands The directors heve mads the
approprigle enquires, and have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequato seSources to continue In operational exiStence for the foresesabls future
Accordingly, ey conlinua to adopl the going concem basls in praparing these accounts

(b) Forelgn cumenciea

Transactions denominated in loreign currancios an trangkated to Siering at the exchange ratas nding at the dates of the tranaaction  Assets and Eabiities denominatad in
foreign cumencies at the balanca shest date ar franstated into Stering at the ratas ruling ai the balance shoatdate  Exchanga difarences arlsing are deall with through tha
prof ang ioss account.

{c) Dividend distribution
Equity dividends doclared at the discration of he Company are raecognised in the period in which they are declared and approved by shareholders

{d) Bividends receivable
Dividands mceived are recognised tn the paried in which thay are dactared and approved by the company paying the dividend

{s) Invastmaents
investrments n subsictary undanakings am ¢amied at cost loss any provision lor iImpaiment.

{f) Finance costa

Frsnce charges am sccounted for on an accruals basis in he profit and 1oss account and are added 1o ha camying amouni of the Matrument tH the S6en Ka! they as not
settled in the pariod in which they artse  Professional ang giher laes Incurred diractly In raising long-tesm debl financa are capiaksad and gmaortsed over the period of the
nstrumant.

{g) Taxatlon

Corporalion tax on the profd or loss for the year comprisas curent and delerred tax.

Current tax is the expectad lax payable o tha taxable incoma for the year, using tax rales and laws anacted of substantively enacted at the batance sheat dats, and any
adjustments 1o tax payabla In respact of pravious years

Detarred taxation is provided on matarizl tming diffarences betwaen the incidenca of income and expenditurs lor Laxation and accounts purposes using the tull provision
basis Delerrad tax assets are only racognisad to the extani that they arp consldered recoverablo sgainst future axable pmofits Delerrad tax balances are nao! discounted
Celemed lax is deternined using the tax rates thal have basn enacled or substaniively enacted by the balance sheat date, and are expectad to apply when the delerred tax
fiabity ls seitled or the deferred lax aasat i realisad

Changes in dafernd tax assats or Eabiities are ecognised as a component of tax expenss in the income statement. except whare thay retate 1o ilems that are chargsd or
craedited diractly to squity in whih casa tha ralated daferved tax le also charged or credriad directly to aquity

2 Profit and loas seeount
As parmittad by section 408 of the Companias Act 2006, the Company has nol included s own profit and loss account in these financial stataments The Company's profit
aftar tax lor the year wag E0 4m (2012 £18 2m} This is deah with in the financial statamnents of tha Group

3 Dividendas
The Comparty has paid en intsrim divdend in the year of £1,991,000 The Company has not daclared any further dividends during the year ended 30 September 2013

{2013 £1,200,000)




Hyporion Insurance Group Limdad

4 Invastments
2013 2012
£'500 E£000
Cost
:l beginning of year 21.?:2 3."3 g?i
daitions \
Disposals 9) (72.346)
At end of year 21973 21,860

The lolowing wers the principal subgidiary entities a1 30 Saptsmbar 2013 Unless omerwise Ehown, e caphal of each comparty i wholly-cwned, Is In antinary sharas and
the principa) country of operation is the country of Incomomtien/registralion

Namn of company % owned Nalure of business

DUAL Intemnational Limitad UK 100 Indrmadciate halding comoany

Howden Broking Group Limhed UK 100 Intarmediate haokfing comoany and insuranca broking
HIG Services Limited UK 100 Managemant services

J K Buckanham Limied UK 100 nsurance broking

Hyperion Marina Holdings Limitad UK 933 Intermadiale hokling company

Hypsrion Finanea Sarl Luxemboug 100 Managament services

Hyporion Davakpment Sarl Luxembourg 100 Mznagement services

On 4 February 2013, Hyperion Insurance Group Limited {"Hyparion™) acquired 55% of a group of companies (the "*FP Marina group”) thrsugh ils nawly incorporatad
subsidiary, Hyparion Marine Holdngs Limitag Further detalls of the transaction are given in the Group's financial statements in note 34

During the yea:, Hyparion alsa acquirad e in two P | sarvica comparies Hyparion Finance S a rland Hypation Developmen! S a r |, and disposad of s
investmant in Avant Garantias SL

5 Deblcrs dus within one year
2013 2012
£000 £000
Other dablars 120 162
Group rehefl dabtor - 998
Defarrad tax assel T 200
Frapayments and accnied ncome 72 1,159
Amounis éue from Group undariakings 35,096 29,754
Dwidands receivable from Group undertalungs 13,429 4 429
Loans due from Group undentakings B, 735 24132
58,360 60,873
Amounis (afling dus afar one year 2013 2012
£ 000 £ 000
Propsymants and accrisd ncoms 3,065 3,454
Amounts dug from Group underiakings 86,408 74,552
102,473 78,006
6 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Bank loans {20,500) {3,000)
Sharaholder lcans {182) {256)
Amgunts owed to Group undsertakings {9,989) {1.013)
Intarest payabla {904} (BE9)
Comoration tax payable - 817)
Other cradiio (627) £1,384)
[32,302) {7.059)
7 Creditors - smounts falling dus after more than one year
2013 2012
£000, £000
Sharaholder loans, secured (6,037) {2,006)
Shargholder lban notes {8,024y 5128
Bank loans {68.6386) {67.000)
(80,697 (74 131}

The bank bormowngs include the syndicaled facitties with HSEC and Licyds Banking Group of £70m, entared into wpon acgulistion of the Wndsor groug in 2012 The
faciktias are spi! bto @ £30m Amorising Facitty (Facilly A) payable over the course of the five yaars, and s £40m Bubet Faclity (Faclay B} paynble st the and of the five year
term £3m of Feclity A was repaid guring 2013

During the yaar the Group aiso draw down on an scquisition (aciity and a revodving credit (acliity £6 1m has been drawn down on tha acquisition tacillty for the yoar ended
30 Septamber 2013, which has a total avedable of £310m The reveiving credit (acility has a batance of £16 5m at year end Both the acquisition and ravolving credit lacities
am ctassified a3 curenl EabiRtins

The facities bear interest which is cakcutated based on LIBOR plus magin The mangin is diferant for each faciity and reducas as the adjusled leverags raduces for the
Group FucllyAbumhlureslohshqhs:&!S!’-nrubwu?%mLBOﬁ while Feciily B bears intarest of as high as 3 75% or as low as 2 50% over LIBOR The
Group has entered inta interast rato swaps to hedga the risk ol an aovearse ratar on the 6 month LIBOR rate (ralar to MNote 23) Tha laciRises an securad
by cross-guaranizes and debantures over o numbar of Group companios a5 detailed in the notes

See nota 40 in the Group accounts for changas to bank bomowngs occyming aftar the balance sheet dats




Hyparion Insurance Group Limded

8 Daferred tax
2013 202
£000 £'000
Detered tax on provisions - 200
Deferred tax aasel
Balance at baginntnyg of year 00 .
Qther tming difsrences - 200
Balance at end of year 200 200
Net defarmed tax &esel nt ond of yoar 200 200,
Total defarred 1ax in profit and loss account far the ysar - 200
9 Share capltal
Details of he Company’s shane caplal ars given in the Group financial statements on note 25
10 Retonclliation ol mowements in sharchclders’ funds
Coalted Share Profit and Total
up ehare premium Other lose shamhaoldar
capital account reserves secount funds
£:000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
As at 1 O¢tober 2012 509 60612 364 18,470 73,955
Shares ssued v 1.441 - - 1,451
Repurchase of shate capial (19} - - {9,980) {9,939)
Dividends paid - - - {1.991) {1,991)
Profit tor the yaes . L 399
A3 8130 Scpyl:mblr 2013 500 62,053 ELT) 6808 ss.a%s'
Caliad Share Profit and Total
up ahars premium Other loss sharehcidsr
cupial sccount resarves account funda
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 October 2011 423 35141 304 147p 7 444
Sharas ssuved 88 25,431 - 25517
Dividands paki - - . (1,200 (1,200)
Prold far the year - - - 18 194 18 194
Aa at 30 Saptomber 2012 505 BU.ETZ K A

11 Capital cammitments
The Company had no capdal commhmants as at 30 September 2013, nor at 30 Septamber 2012

12 Post balance sheet avents

See nota 40 i the Group accounts for changes to bank borrowings occurring attar the balance sheet date

n




